SR BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP A anberra Block

No. 24, Vittal Mallya Road
Chartered Accountants Bengaluru - 560 001, india

Tel 1 +91 80 6648 9000
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
Report on the Audit of the 1nd AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Tata Power Solar Systems Limited (“the
Company ™, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and aceording to the explanations given Lo us, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2€ 13, as amended (“the Act™} i the
manner o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its loss including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibitities under those Standards are further deseribed in
the “Auditor’s Responsibitities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics® issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have {ulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Board's Report but does not include Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial stalements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 1o
report that fact. We have nothing 1o report in this regard,

Responsibility of Management for Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
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Standfards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriaie accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasomable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internat financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give
atrue and fair view and are [ree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concer basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and (o issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughowt the audit. We also:

»  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
traud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks. and obtain audit evidence that
is suflicient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ervor, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intemional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal controt relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate imternal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a going concern, 1f we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 10 the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up fo the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company Lo cease 1o continue as a going concern.

+  Bvahlupte the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures. and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves [air presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

wdentify during our audit
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethica|

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulafory Requirements

1

fae

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2006 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Acl, we give in the “Annexure [ 3
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b}

()

(d)

(g)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financiat statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
ander Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
Lo our separate Report in “"Annexure 2™ to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuncration for the year ended Mairch 31, 2021 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rute 1 { of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
finuncial statements ~ Refer Note 32 to the Ind AS financial statements;

il.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts - Refer
Naote 20 and 22 to the Ind AS financial statements;
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iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FCAT Firm Registrgtion Number: 101049W/E300004

Hdarsh Ranka

tther

Membership Number: 209567
UDIN: 2120956 TAAAABT9020
Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 20, 2021
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Annexure | referred to in clause | of paragraph on the report on other legal and regulatory
requirements of eur report of even date

Re: Tata Power Solar System Limited

i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showiny full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a
regular program of verification which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the title deeds of the
immovable properties included in property plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

11) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

i) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company has granted
loans to one Company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013,

a} In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us by the management,
the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the Company s interest.

b) In the case of loans granted to the companies listed in the register maintained under section 189

of the Act, the borrowers have been regular in the repayment of the principal and payment of
interest wherever required.

¢) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, {irms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more than
ninety days.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, provisions of section 183
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are
interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securitics
given have been complied with by the Company.

v} The Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the

Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable.

vi}We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related 1o the manufacture and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

vii} a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident tund, employees™ state insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, value added tax,
goods and services tax. cess and other statutory dues applicable (o it,
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b) According to the information and explanations given 1o us by the management, no undisputed
amounts payable in respeet of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of custom,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
ol more than six months from the date they became payable.

¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-lax, service tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax and cess on account of any
dispuie, are as follows:

Name of the i Nature of | Amount  of | Period  for | Forum  where | Amount Amount
statue dues Demand (Rs. | which dispute is | paid (Rs. In | unpaid (Rs.
In Lakhs) AMOUNS pending Lakhs) fn Lakhs)
refates (o
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax FY 2003-04 | Income  Tax
1961 1,629.70 Appeliate 1,629.70 -
Tribunal
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax FY 2007-08 | Commissioner
1961 580.60 Income Tax 580.60 -
(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax FY 2010-11 | Income Tax
1961 71991 Appeliate 719.91] -
Tribunai
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax FY 2011-12 | Income Tax
1961 140.63 Appellate 140.63 -
Tribunal
Rajasthan VAT | Rajasthan FY 2013-14, | Rajasthan Tax
Act, 2003 VAT 3.806.72 1 FY 2014-13 | Board 208.74 3,597.98
and
FY 2015-16

viii) tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management,

the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

ix) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence.
reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
fimancial statements and according to the information and explanations given 1o us by the management,
we report that no material fraud by the Company or no materiat fraud on the Company by the officers
and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid/provided by the company 1o ils directors in accordance with provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act,

xit) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,
- A
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xiit) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the

related parties are in compliance with section 188 and section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential alfotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements
under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in
section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

darsh Ranka

artner

Membership number: 209567
UDIN: 21209567TAAAABT9020
Place: Bengalury

Date: April 20, 2021
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Annexure 2 to the Independent auditor’s report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements
of Tata Power Solar System Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Aet, 2013 (‘the Act?)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tata Power Solar System
Limited ("the Company™} as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderty and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
saleguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our andit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(1()
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the 1CAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the interna
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating cffectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, with reference to these
financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectivencss of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over {inancial reporting with
reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed 1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of the Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference 1o these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain fo the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Ind AS financial statements,

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
1o these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAT

IFor S.R. Batliboi & Associates LI.P
ICAL firm registration number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

darsh Ranka

artier

Membership Number: 209567
UDIN: 21209567TAAAABTO020
Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 20, 2021




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
CIN: U40106ME1989PLC 330738

? in Lakhs
Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A ASSETS
t  |Non.currént assets
() Property. plant and equipment 4 35.384 60 17,301 58
() Capiat work-in-progress 466.79 9322
(¢} Intangible assels 5 34 60 164.41
(@) Financial assets
(i) Inveslment in subsidiary [ 100.00 10000
(i} Trade recoivables 9 21.78348 3.027 B4
iy Loans 12 476,42 37739
{iv} Olher nanciat assets t3 267 05 -
{e} Non-current tex assels {net) 44 4,387 .54 270328
{fi Deferred tax assets (net} 31 11.820 36 -
(g} Other non-cutrent assels 15 1.80 1.80
Totat non-current assets 74.722.64 33,774.32
2 [Current asseis
(a) Inventories 7 41.568.81 29.5017%
{h) Financiai assels
(i} Investments 8 - 3,621 28
{ii} Trade receivables 9 33372500 95947 32
{di} Uribiliad Revenue 4,150.97 1,423.26
{iv) Cash and cash equivalents 10 13.897.52 4,160 65
{v} Balances wilh bank other than (v} above 11 - 4060900
{vi} Loans 12 33698 324 34
{wi) Other financial assels 13 16.72 16,064 .98
{c} Other cureenl assels 16 37 48980 21,124 41
Tatal current assets 4,31,285.91 1,76.167.94
Totat assets {1+2) 5,06,008,55 1,99,942.26
8 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Eguity
(a) Equily share capitat 16 229776 22.877.57
{h) Other equity 17 39,364.71 46.20177
Totak enuity 62,342.28 69,179.34
Liabifities
2 [Non-current labiilies
(&) Financial abilties
 Borrowings i6 11,00000 -
(b} Provisions 22 G644 66 7.985.89
{c) Nop-current tax Eabilities (ney 21 W2 66 302.66
{d} Deferced tax Raviflies {nety - 3,242.58
{e} Diher non-cument liabilities 23 1.214.75 1.214.75
Total non-current liabilities 22 162.07 12,745.98
3 |Current fiabilities
(a) Financiai fabiilies
(i} Bomrowings 18 B2.362.82 401
(i} Tiade payables
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 19 4576 29 2,298.31
smiail enletprises
{b) Tetal oulstanding dues of creditors other than micro 19 208,162 89 61.753.77
enterprises and sinafl enterprises
(iiny Other financial liabifities 20 28,124.50 1.016.34
{b} Current tax lizbilties {net) 21 443069 .
{0 Provisions 22 7.159.14 1.970.92
(dy Other cureent liabiilies 23 86 567.76 50.973.59
Total current lzblites 4,21.504.20 1,18,016.94
Total equity and liabilities (1+2+3) 5.06,008.55 1,99,842.26
The accompanying noles are an integral pan of Lhe financial slalements.
As per our 1eport of even date
For §.R.Balliboi & Associates LLP Faor and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W! £300004 Tala Powes Soiar Sysiems Limited
Chariered Accountaniy . .
A
Ardead B, Fhrcms.d Plasy Lon

pllarsh Ranka
Fariner
tdembership Number: 209567

Place : Bengaluru
Date: Apnl 20, 2021

-

Ashish Khanna, Director
DAN: 06699527

Mahesh O Paranjpe
Chief Executive Officer

Jeraz E. Matwernosh
Company Secrelary

Place | Mumbai
Date: Aprit 20, 2021

Anand Agarwal, Direclor
NN 06398370

WA

Adilya Gupta
Chief Financial Gfficer




Fata Power Solar Systems Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 20214
Cipd: U40106MH1989PLC330738

T in Lakhs
Particulars Mote For the year ended For the year ended
o March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
i Revenue from operations 24 5,11.891.34 2.14,070.09
il Other income 25 242436 2,540.21
I Total income {1 + 1) 5,14,315.70 2,16,610.10
IV Expenses
Cost of malerials consumed (including sub-contracling cost of Rs,28,349.39 4,33,840.88 1.86 222,80
Lakns (March 31,2020 Rs. 17,151.81 Lakhs)
(Increase) decrease in nventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 126.62 {1.300.66)
Employes benefits expenses 25 12.530.34 12,844 86
Firance cosls 27 8,053.87 3.954 .48
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 28 249821 1,764.87
Other expenses 29 3481525 27,429.15
V  Total expenses 4,91,865.17 2,00,945.39
VI Profit before tax (1i- V) 22,450.53 15,694,919
Vi Tax expenses
Cutrent tax {including MAT) 7.316.86 342728
Deferred tax (5,706.30) -
Total tax expenses 1.610.56 3,427.26
Vil Profit for the period (VI-VI)} 20,839.97 12,267.65
X Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified 1o profit / {loss)
{i) Remeasurements of the defined benefil liabilities / (asset) 191.14 {172.589)
(i) Income tax refafing fo fems that will not be reclassified 1o profit / (loss) 48,1 (60.31)
lems that may be rectassified lo profit or (loss)
{i} Met movement on cash flow hedges (37 .175.69) 12.883 72
(i) Income tax relating to items that will may be reclassified to profit / (foss) {9.356 63) 3.242.58
Total other comprehensive income i) - (i) {27 .677.03) 9.526 86
X Total comprehensive income for the periad (VHI + 1X) {6,837.06) 21,796.51
Xt Earnings per equity share (¥} : 35
Basic g90.70 53.39
Dinsted 90.70 53.39

The accompanying noles are an integra part of the financial slatements.

As per our reporl of even date

For $.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAL Firm Registration Number, 10049/ £300004
Chartered Accountants

ifiarsh Ranka
Partner
Membership Number 209567

Place : Bengaluru
Dale: Aprit 20, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Tata Power Solar Systems Limited

L) Kl
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s e e gt

r

Ashist Khanna, Dirécmf
DIN: 06699527

Mahesh D Paranjpe
Chief Executive Offi

Jeraz E. Mahernosh
Company Secretary

Place - Mumbai
Date Aprit 20, 2021

cer

F e ed PP

Anand Agarwal, Direclor
DIN: 06398370

W.

Aditya Gupla
Chref Financiai Officer




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited

Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2021
CIN: U401066MH1989PLC330738

Z in Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 34, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit { (loss) before lax

22,450.53 15,604.91
Adjustments for:
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 8.053.87 3.554 48
Interest income recognised in profit or loss (2,407 .86} (336.38)
Loss/ {(Gain) on disposal of property. plant and equipment 5.49 063
Impairment of financial assets {619.38) 1,289.83
Bad debts 186.22 27.43
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.498.21 1,764 .87
Provision for warranty 2.649.57 1.044 .62
Liabiities Written back - -
(Gain)ftoss on sale of current invesiments {12.90} {498.15)
32.803.75 22,942.24
Movements in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories (12.067.21) {5.116.40)
Trade receivables {2,56,100.36} 84,554.30
Current Loans (12.65} (46.03)
Other current assets {16.365.39) {2.519.66)
Non-gurrent loans {99.03) (6.72)
Other non-cugrent assets (267 .05) 12.04
Unbilled revenue {2.727.71) 1,128.78
Movement in operating assets {2,87.639.40) 78,012.31
Adjustments for increase / (decrease} in operating liabiities:
Trade payables 1.48,787.21 (21,557.36)
Other current liabilities 35.594.17 24.256.29
Short-term provisions 2,729.80 (3.811.74}
Long-term provisions 1.658.67 2.326.84
Other financial hahilities - Current 159.60 24.57
Movemeni in operating fiabilities 1.88,929.45 1.238.60
Cash generated from operations (65,906.20) 1,02,193.15
fncome taxes paid (4.618.55) (3,090.56)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities {70,524.75) 99,0931.59
Cash flows from investing activitieg
Purchase of current investments - (51,000.00
Proceeds from sale of current investments 363418 47 876.87
Interest received 242212 308.71
Payments for properly. plant and eguipment {including
capital advances) {13,129.13) {1,084 .56}
Payments for intangible assets - (40.74)
Proceeds from disposal of properly, plant and equipment 6.54 278
Loan given to related parties (26,801.85) {10.507.28)
Loan fepaid by related parlies 26,801.85 10,507.28
invesiments in bank deposits {net) 4.000.00 {4,000.00)
Net cash {used in)! genarated from investing activities {3,066.29) (7,936.94}




Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 44.668.61 {46,150.10y
Loan taken from relaled parties 86,982.00 47.446 46
Loan repaid 1o related parties (35.998.80) (55,947.46)
fnterest paid (13.950.90) (8.486.55)
Net cash {used in}/ generated from financing activities 81,700.91 {63,137.65)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B,108.87 28,019.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,160.65 (23.858.35)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 42,270.52 4,160.65
Cash and Cash Equivalents include : As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash on Hand
Balances with hanks
In current accounts 13,197.52 1.875.65
In Deposit Accounts (with original maturity three months or less) 800.00 2.285.00
Bank Overdrafl {1.727.00) -
12,270.52 4,160.65

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the financial stalements.
As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batfibei & Associates LLP

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/ E300004

Chartered Accountants

per Adarsh Ranka
Partner
Membership Number: 209567

Place : Bengaluiu
Cate: April 20, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
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Tata Power Solar Systems Limied
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
CItv: 1;40T106MH1989PLC330738

a. Equity share capital
Asalaprd 12019
As at March 34, 2020

Asatapat 1, 2020

¥ in Lakhs
22977 57
22.977.57

22,977 67

As at March 31, 2029

b. Gther Equity

T in Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus lem of Other Totaj other equity
Comprehensive Income
Particulars Sacurities General reserve} Capital redemption | Deemed equity Retained Effective portion of cash
premium {Refer note Reserve eamings flow hedge Reserve
{Refer note 17.7} 1. (Refer note 17.3}  {{Refer note 17.4) | (Refer nole 17.5} {Refer note 17.6)
AS at Apai 1, 2018 14,687 09 4.73500 2.2050C0 128187 1.528.30 24.405.26
Profit / {Loss) tor tho pericd . - - 12.267 65 12,267 85
Oer comprenhensive ncome ¢ (expensa) arsng from {112 28) 9,641 14 G 520 86
remeasurements of ihe defned benefil liabikties /
{asset) (net of lax}
As at March 1, 2020 14,587.03 4,736.00 2,295.00 1,261.87 13,68187 2,641.14 46,201.77
As at Aprit 1. 2020 14,587 02 473500 229500 +.281 87 13.68167 9,641 14 46,201 77
Profil / {1.oss) for the Penod - - - . 2083997 . #0.83997
Oher comprehensive INCOms J {expense] (net of tax) . . 143 03 27.820.06) {27 677 03
As at March 31, 2021 t4,587.08 4,736.60 2,285.00 1,261.87 34,664.87 {18.178.92) 39,364.71
The accompanying netes are an integral part of the fnancat slatements
As per ot repon of even dale
For and on behalf of lhe Soard of Drectors of Tala Powes Sofar Syslems Linvted
For §.R Batibor & Assocates LLP Fof and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
ICAE Firmn Regisiration Number 101048W7 E300064 Tala Power Solar Syslems Limited
Charered Accountantis
»’:\"r'\ irie b
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Ashists Khanna, Diector

Anand Agarwat, Director
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Manesh [ Paranype Agiya Gupla Jeraz £ Manemash

Chief Executive Otficer Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary

Piace ;| Bengaiuru
Dite. Apnit 20, 2021

Place Mumbas

Date. Aprii 20. 2021




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
CIN: U40106MH1989PLC330738

1 Corporate information
Tata Power Solar Systems Limited {*the Company™ or “TPSSL™) is a manulacturer of solar photo-voltaic cells and

modules as well as in the Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) in the solar energy market, wherein the

manufactured celis/imodules are utilised. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Tata Power Company
Limited.

2 Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™ notified
under the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) (as amended from time to time),

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentafion

This financial statement has been reported in Rs. Lakhs, except for information pertaining to number of shares and
earnings per share information.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabifities
(vefer accounting policy reparding financial instruments) which have been measured at fair value.

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“Rs") which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates.

2.3 Other Significant Accounting Policies

2.3.1 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, An asset
is treated as curreni when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

b Held primarily for the purpose of trading

| Expected o be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

| Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seitle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

> 11 is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

> 11 is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» It is due to be settfed within twelve months afler the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporling  period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are classilied as nen-current assets and liabilities.

equivalents, THe Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
CIN: U40106MH1989PL.C330738

2.3.2 Nen-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held lor sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset {or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. The management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Nor-current assets {and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

2.3.3 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in cwrrencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary ilems carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or foss in the period in which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings:

exchange differences on monetary tems receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary ilems.

2.3.4 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Company measures financial mstruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date using
valuation techniques.

Fair value is the price that would be received (o seil an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Hability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or lability. assuming that market participants act in their econontic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to gencrate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling il to another market participan! that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable i
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurentent as a whole:

Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
direetly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recogniscd in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have cccurred between fevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value imeasurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

2.3.5 Financial insfruments

Financial assets and financial tiabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying
the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial labilities and financial guarantee contracts are initially
measured at transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Habilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss} are added to or deducted from the fair value
measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial Hability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised
in the Statement of profit and loss. In case of interest free or concession loans/debentures/preference shares given to
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the excess of the actual amount of the loan over initial measure at fair value
is accounted as an equity investment.

Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured at cost less
impaiment.

Investment in preference shares/ debentures of the subsidiaries are treated as equity instruments if the same are
convertible into equity shares or are redeemable out of the proceeds of equity instruments issued for the purpose of
redemption of such investments. Investment in preference shares/ debentures not meeting the aforesaid conditions are
classified as debl instruments at amottised cost,

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of atlocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial

instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(a) Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the

financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held

within a business modet whose objective is to hold these assels in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell

these financial assels and the confractual terms ol the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

sotely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company in respect gEaRg

investinen| gg‘;ﬂlﬁé‘mgin in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures} which are not held for trading hag
A

irreveable electiog. r,presem in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of §
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instruments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial
recognition of such equity investments,

Financial asset nol measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair
value through the statement of profit and Joss.

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due 1o the short maturity of these instruments.

lmpairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value
through the statement of profit and loss,

The Company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model, which involves use
of provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS 109 -
Impairment loss on invesiments.

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to
twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is
recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under ind AS 109,

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to

controf the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liabitity for
amountis it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the

Company continues fo recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount measured at the date
of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

{b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity insirument,

Equity Instruments

An equily instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity insfruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Financial habilities are initially measured al fair value, net of fransaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. Interest bearing
bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost usm;, lhc effeclive mleaeqt rate. method Any d]fiewnu, bu,[wu,n the pmt.u.ds {na of uamacnon COsts) dnd the
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For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate
fair value due to the short maturity ol these instruments.

a. Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made 1o
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial puarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

b. De-recognition

A financial hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

C. Off-setting of financial insiruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable {egal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.3.6 Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure (o foreign exchange
rate risks by way of foreign exchange forward contracts.

Perivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as linancial liabiities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently resuls in
the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial fiability.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109
are freated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related 1o those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

» Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or Hability or
an unrecognised firm commitment

> Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure Lo variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asse! or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign
currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitmen

» Hedges of a nef investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formaily designates and documents the hedge refationship to

which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the visk being
hedged, and how the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge ellectiveness
requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A
hedging refationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirementgs
* There is ‘ancegnomic relationship” between the hedged item and the hedging instrument. o

+ The efféet 0¥ credityisk does not “dominate the value changes” that result from that economic relationsiffs®
s ., -
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» The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that
the Company actually hedges and the guantity of the hedging instrument that the Company actually uses to hedge
that quantity of hedged item.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Fair value hedges

The ¢change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.
The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged 1s recorded as part of the carrying value
of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

(ii) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the Effective portion of
cash flow hedges, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss, The
L ffective portion of cash flow hedges is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions and firm commitments. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in
finance costs.

The amounts accumulated in OC! are accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged transaction.
If the hedged transaction subsequently results in the recogniiion of a non-financial item, the amount accumulated in
equity is removed from the separate component of equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of
the hedged asset or Habitity. This is not a reclassification adjustment and will not be recognised in OCI for the period.
This also applies where the hedged forecast transaction of a non-financial asset or non-financial lability subsequently
becomes a firm commiiment for which fair value hedge accounting s applied.

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in OCI is reclassified to profit or toss as reclassification
adjustment in the same period or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss,

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in OCI must remain in
accumulated OCT if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur. Otherwise, the amount will be
immediately reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. Afier discontinuation, onee the hedged cash
flow accurs, any amount remaining in accumulated OC!| must be accounted for depending on the nature of the
underlying transaction as deseribed above.

(iit) Hedges of a nel investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part
of the net investment, are accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are recognised as OC1 while any gains or losses relating to
the ineffective portion are recognised in the statement of profit or foss. On disposal of the foreign operation, the

cumulative vatue of any such gains or losses recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit and loss (as a
reclassification adjustment).

2.3.7 Leases:

At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is, or contains, a fease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. At inception or on reassessment ol a contract that contains a lease component, the Company altocates
consideration in the contract te each lease component on the basis of their relative standalone price.

e
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Company as a lessee:
i) Right-of-use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and bmpairment lpsses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease tabilities recognised, inittal direct
costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incenlives received and
astimate of costs to dismantte. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

i} Lease Liabilities:

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present vajue of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company
generally uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the discount rate inplicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. Afier the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. The carrying amount is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in index or rate. In addition, the carrying amount of
tease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

1il) Short-term leases and feases of low-valie assels:
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases. It also applies the lease

of low-value assets recognition exemption that are considered to be fow value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a siraight-line basis over the lease term.

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, management of the Company is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underiying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements s included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation
for each affected Hine item in the [inancial stalements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:3.1 Liseful lves of Property. Plant and Equipment

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting peried.

3.2 Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company’s assels and liabilities are measured al fair vatue for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where level | inputs are not available, the Campany engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The cross functional team of the Company works closely with the valuer to establish the appropriate

valuation techmqm.s and mputs to lhe mode[ The thef Fmancxai Oﬂ:cer ruporis the Fndm;:, to the board ofducclors
ol the (.ompm
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3.3 Determination of percentage of completion

The Company uses the proportionate completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for unbilled revenue
/ unearned revenue and contract cost thereon for its turnkey contracts, The percentage of completion is measured by
reference to the stage of the projects and contracts determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for
work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs. Use of the proportionate completion method requires
the Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or costs o be
expended. Significant assumptions are required in determining the siage of completion, the extent of the contract cost
incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and the recoverability ofthe contracts. These estimates
are based on events existing at the end of each reporting date.

3.4 Deferred tax asset is recognized only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will
have sufficient taxable profits in future against which such assets can be utilized. Significant management judgment
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and

the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies, recent business performance and
developments.

3.5 Refer note 39 as regards management judgements with regard to COVID ~ 19 pandemic.
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Note - 4 : Propery, plant and equipment

Arcounting Policy

Proparty. plant end equpment & stated al cosl {oss sccumuialed deproc:ation and accumulated imparmend iosses, i any Cost ncides puichase pace {net of rade discount and rebates) and any drecily
attnbutable cost of bringeng the asset 10 115 working condilion for i1s intended wso and for Qualiying assels, borowang <osts caplalised in accordance wilh ind AS 23 Capital work i prograss is stated at cost, net
of sccumulgted impaimment izss, f any. Other Indirect Expenses incuried relakng fo project, net of income eatned dunng the project development stage peor 16 1ts mignded use, are consdered as pre-opecative
expenses and disciesed under Capilal Work-in-Progress. When significanl pans of plant and equipment ate acquited lo be repiaced at intervals, Ihe Company depeeciales inem scparately based on Wheir specific
usefuilives Likewise, when a major inspeclion s parformed, 1ls cos! is recognised in the carrying amount of (he plant and equipment as a repiacement f the fecogriton cidena are satishad. AR other repair snd
maintenance costs are recogmsed in the stalement of profit and lass as mcurred

Subsequent cosis are included i the assel's camyng amount o facognised a6 6eParale A5Sat, A5 APPIOPNale, CNly when sl prebabia (hat futuie econonwe benelits associated with the ilem well fiow Lo the enlity
and the cost can be measured reliadly

Land and buddings held for use in the production of Supply ol GOoUs of services, o 1or administrative purpases, are staled it 1he batance shael al cosd fess actumulated degecation and accumulated imparment |
Fraehold land 15 nol deprecated

Fiures and equapment {incuting vetles) are siated at cost iess acoumualed deprecialion and accumulalad impairment losses

Propertes in the course of construction [of aredudlivn. supfly of sdminiskative purposes are carned al Cosl, 1858 any recodrised impainment loss. Castncludes indirert costs and, for qualiying assets, borrowiog
Losts capilatised in accardance with the Company's accounting policy. Such propesties are classilied lo ihe approprate calegones of property. plani and equipment when compieled and ready Tor mtendod use
Depreciation of thase assets, onihe same basis as olher propery assels. commences when the assals are ready for their infended use

The Company identifies and determines cost of each companent’ par of the assel separatety, if the componeny pard has a cost which is signiticant (o the to1al £ost of the asset having uselal e that is maleriaky
dilferent from that of 1he remaining asset These componants are depecated over thoir useful lives, the remaining assot 15 deprecaled over 1he e of the pnncipal asset. When significant parts of planl and
equipment are fequired 10 be replaced at intorvals, the Company depteciales them separalely based on theis specific useful fves Likewise, when a major mspeclion is perdormed, its cost is recogrized in (ha
catrpng amaunt of the plant and squipmani as a replacement if the recognition critena are satisfied Al olher repair and maintenancy costs arg recoynized i the statemant of profit of loss as and when incurred

Subsequenl costs are included 0 the 3ssel's casying amount of recognisod a5 @ separate asset, as appropnale, only when d i probable thal future sconommc benpelds associaled wih the dem wil fow (o tha

Company and Ine cost of the ilem can be measured reiably, The carrying amounl of any component accouried 1or as a separate assets are derecognised when replaced. AS other repains and mantenance e
charged to profit and ioss dunng the reporting period 1n which thoy ar@ incuried

Depreciation 1s recognised 50 as to wile off the cost of assels (olher (han frashold land znd properties under coOnstuckon) less their residual values over ther usefu lives, using the staighting methed The
estimated vsefuf lives, residual vafues and dep tign methed are reviewed a1 the end of each reporting pariod, wath tha sifect of any changes in gstimate aczounied 107 on a prospectve dasis,

Estimated uselul 4ves of the assels are as lolows

» Proparty, plant angd equipmant - The wseful Me s as prassabed m Scheduie I o tha Companies Act, 2013 except mrespact of he folicewng categories of assels, inwhose case the ife of the assets has bearn

assessed as undar based on lechnueal aduce, takeng mto accounl the nalure of the asset, the estinated usagoe of the assel, the operating condnions of this agsal, past nistory of replacement, antic:pated
hanges, mans watmrantias and mantenance suppor, elc..

i} Plant and Machinery. Usefid ife ranging liom 3 lo 14 years
() W case of ow value dysets ie sssels individuaily costing less than Rs 50000, they are depreciated in [l i the year of capdabsation

» Lease-hold fprovemends are amorused over the primary penod of the leass

Pro-rata depreciation 1s charged on assels purchased and £ or sold during Lhae yaar

Anitem af prepery, plant and equpment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure bengiis are axp to anse from ihe coninued use of the asset Any gain or foss ansing on the dispasal or
feliternsent of analem ot properdy, plant and equiptent i datermmid as the délerence between the sales proceads andg the carmyng amourt of e askel and is cecognisad in1Re stalement of profit and loss

Refer Mole 5 as regacds accsunting pokcy on inpsiment of gropery, plant and equipment

Linlakhs
Particulars Land Buitding Ptant and Leasehold Office Furniture and | Motor vehicies Total
machinery lmprovemets equiprent fixtures

Girass carrying valag
As 3t April 1, 2019 7.456.80 7,275.48 23,452.17 20.84 1,664.30 B26.14 57.67 40,753.44
Additions made during the year - 129 18 54271 - 25388 788 080 934 45
Disposals/ agjustments during the year . . (755.13) . (2100 (40 59} . (73072}
As at March 31, 2020 7,456.80 7.404.64 23,20575 20.84 1,897.24 823.43 58.47 40,887 .17
Addians made dunng Ihe parod . 430.46 19,624 55 - 358 45 5200 - 20,462 46
Disposals! adjusiments dunng tha pedod - - {1,192.87) - (52.35) 517 {15.88) {1,256 0%)
As at March 31, 202¢ 7,456 .80 783510 41,667.63 20.84 2,201.34 870.26 4161 60,004.58
Aesumylated dopreciation
As at Aprit 1, 2018 - 1,433,777 19,688,36 20.84 914.44 £98.30 27.B7 22,782.18
Deprematinn expense for the year . 466 11 BL7 B5 - 280 51 4098 15 50 1,600.72
Disposals! agjusiments fof the year . . 1758 B0) - (18.30) {10.24} - {787.31)
As at March 31, 2020 - 1,89%.88 19,745.21 20.84 1.156.65 12965 43.37 23,595.59
Depredaton lor the penad . 46960 1,553.39 - 277.57 3957 827 236840
Disposaiss adjustments during the pariod - - 11,38B.13) . 149.21) {517y (11.57) (1,264 .02}
As at Karch 31, 2021 B 2.389.47 20,119,47 20.84 1,385.01 764.05 40.12 24,709.97
Net Block As at March 31, 2021 7.456.80 5,445.63 21,557.16 - 816.33 106.2% 2.48 35,384.60
et Block As at March 31, 2020 745680 £.504.76 3,490.54 - 140.59 93.78 15.10 §2,301.59
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Notes (o the fingncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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Note . 5 : intangible assels

Accounting Policy

Inlangtie assels scqured sepacalely

fvigngnbie assets wilh fnie uselul dves thal are acquired sepasately are cainied 3\ costiess accumulated amortisauon and accumidaled impatiment losses. Amortsation « recognised on a straightline bass sver
Ihisir gstimatad uselul ives Tha estmated useluflile and amoshisation nwelhod S 16vewsd at he and of @ach rapariing pencd, with he effect of any changes in esimale being 2ccowiied for ona prospechive
basis. iIntang assels wilh indelt useful lives thal are acquired separalely are camed al cast 1635 accumulated impairmeant tosses

Derecogmiion of intangible assels

An miargible asset s derecogrused on disposal. of when no lulure econoanc benefits are expacied Nom use o d&sposal Gaing ot losses ansing lrom derecogniben of annangible assel, measurad as Ine
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of he asse!, ara recognised in the sialemeni of profit and loss wnen the assal is deracognised

intanpible assels
Estimated useful bves of (the inlangbie assels are as follows
» Software purchased . 3 yeass

The eshmated uselul ife of the intangible assels and the amorlisation period are reviewed at ihe end of sach financial year and the amormisation method 1S revised to reflect the changed patter.

Impajrovent of Preperty, plant and equipment and intangible assela

As &l the end of each accounting year Ihe Company reviews the casmying amoums of s Property, planl and equipment and intangibfe assels 10 determine whether trera is any indication thal those assels have
sullered an impairment loss. i suchindication exisls, the said assers ara lested lof inpawment so as 10 delermine the inpairment 1oss, il any Goodwll and the intangible assets wilh indefinde lile are tested for
wapairment each year

imparment loss is recognised whan the carryng amount of an asset sxceeds 1S recoverable amount. Rectverable smount is delermined:

{f) in lhe case of an naividua! asset. a1 (o higher of Ine net seffing price arkt 1ne vaiue in use, ang

(i) in ihe Gase of 8 cash generating unit {a group of assets thal genatales identiiy, independent cash Bows), al e highe: of the cash gererating unit's net seding price and e value 0 use

{The amount bt value in use is determingd as the present valua of astimated fulurs cash (tows from the centinuing use of an asse! and %o is disposal al the ond of ils usefud e For this purposa. the discount
rate (pre-lax} is dalermingd based on the weighted average cost of capital of (he company suitably adjusted for risks specified Lo the estimated cash llows of tha asset)

For this purpose, a cesh generaling unil 1§ ascertained as the smallest identifizbie group of assets that generates cash inflows thal are largely ingependenl of the cash inflows from other assels of groups of
assels

if recoverabla amount of an assat {or cash generating unil} is estimated 10 be fess than i1s carrying amount, such deficil is recognised immadiately in the Statemant of Profi and Loss as impaismient loss and the
canmying amount of the assel (or cash genetaling unil} is reduced to ils secoverable amount

When an wpaiment foss subsequenlly reverses, the camang amount of the asset (or cash genrerating umi) 15 ncreased 1o the ranised estimate of s recoverabie ameunt, bul so thal he mcreased canying
amount <oes nol exceed the carrEng amount that would have been de had no imp 1085 & ¥ for the assat (or cash generating unit) m prior years. A reversal of an impainment loss 15
recognised immediatety in the Statement of Profit and Lass

Reler nole 39 as fegards managemen! judgements with regard to SOVID - 16 pandemic,

Rs. in Lakhs
Pacticutars Soltware Technical Tatal
knowhow

Gross ¢amying valus
As at April 1, 20048 846.17 07,38 1,153.56
Additions made during the yaar a0.74 . a0 74
Disposals! agiusiments during the year - B07 29, {907.35}
As at March 31, 2020 886.91 - 836.81
Additions made duning lhe pencd - - .
Dispasals/ acjusiments during the penod - - .
As at March 3%, 2021 686.91 - 286.91
Accumulated amortisation
As at Aprid 1, 2019 558.35 207.3% 1,465.74
Amertisation expense for ina year 184.15 . 164.15
Cisposaiasl acjustmants for the year - {907 39) 1907.39)
As af Bearch 31, 2020 72250 - T22.50
Amortsation expense 128.81 - 32981
Disposais/ acjusiments durng the yes: - - -
As al March M, 2021 852.31 - 852
Net Block As at March 31, 2021 34 60 - 1440
Net Block As at March 31, 2020 1€4.41 - 164.41




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
CIN: U40106MH1989PLC330738

Naote - 6 Non-current investments
2 in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

{i} Investments in equify instruments at cost
Unquoted investments (all fully paid)

- Chirasthaayee Saurya Limited (wholly owned subsidiary) (1,000,000 100.00 100.00
shares of Rs. 10 each)

Totat 100.00 100.00

Aggregate value of unguoted investments 100.00 100 00

Note - 6.1: Investment in equity instrument

The Company has incorporaled a subsidiary Chirasthaayee Saurya Limited wilh total investment of Rs. 100 Lakhs in the form of equity as at March
31, 2021

Note - 7: Inventories
Accounting Policy

Inventories are stated al the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determuned on a weighted average basis. Cost includes
afi charges in bringing the goods o the point of sate, including octroi and other favies, transil insurance and receiving charges. Wosk-in-progress and
finished goods mciude appropriate propontion of overheads and, where applicable, excise duty. Nel realisable value represents the estimated sefling
price for inventories less all estimaled costs of completion and costs necessary 1o make the sale.

» Raw materials: cost includes cosl of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 1o ther present location and condition

¥ Finished goods and warle in progress: cost includes cost of direct materiats and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the
normai operating capacity bul excluding borrowing ¢osts.

» Traded goods: cost ncludes cost of puschase and ather costs incurred in bringing the inveniories to their present location and condition.

Initial cost of nventories includes the transfer of gains and fosses on quakifying cash flow hedges, recognised in OCL in respect of the purchases of
raw materials.

¥ in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
{Lower of cost and net reatisable value}
Raw materials 31.678.87 19,780 4%
Worksin-progress 84179 386.74
finished goods 8.277.08 B.6846.75
Slores and spares 971.07 675.60
Total 41,568.91 29,501.70
Included above, goods-in-transit:
Raw malerials 2.303.43 2.850.71
Finished goods 3,780.81 3,091.11
Total 5,084.24 5,941.82

The cost of materals consumed inciude inventories and project related materials delivered at site recognised as an expense during the year was Rs.
405,491 4% Lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2020: Rs. 139,071.08 Lakhs)

The Made of valuation of inventories has been staled above.

Note - 8: Current investments

T in Lakhs
Particuiars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of Units Amount No, of Units Amount
Unquoted tnvestments in Mutual Funds
Baroda Liguid Fund Direct Growth . - 26,322 6802.57
Tatz Liquid Fund Direct Plan. Growth - - 19,230 602.30
BNP Paribas Liquid Fund Direct Growth - - 36,158 1,105.55
LIC Mutual Fund Liquid Fund- Direct Growth - - 36,374 1,310.86
Totai - 3,621.28
Aggregate value of unguoted current investments - 3621.28
Aggregate value prevision for dimirution in the value of curren} - -
investiments




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
MNotes to the financial statemments for the year ended March 31, 2021
CIN: LMOM10EMH1289PLC330T38

Mote - 9: Trade receivables

Z in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2020
Currant Non-currgnt Current HNon-current
Considered Good- Secured - - - -
Considered Good- Unsecused 3,35,150.31 21,783.48 96, 698.0% 3,027.64
Doubtiul 365062 117.97 10,696.87 455 10
Less: Allowance for doubtful dehts (including expected (5.075.93) (137.97} (11,647 .44} {455.10)
credit loss aflowance)
Total 3,33,725.00 21,783.48 95,947.32 3,02754
Note - 9.1 :

The average credit paricd on sale of goods and services ranges beiween 60 to 80 days. No interest is nomally charged on the trade receivable
outstanding balances. Before accepling any new customer, the Company does a credit evaluation either through internal evaluations or through
extemal analysts reports except in the case of Government funded projects and large Public Sector Undertakings (PSUs) which are considered to
have high credit quality, to assess the potential customer's credit quality. In case of trade receivables where the credit period is moss than 12 months,
the Company had discourted is fulure cash flows 16 their present value using its incremental borrowing rate.

No trade or other receivable are due from direciors or other officers of the Company either severally of jointly with any other person. Nor any lrade or
other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively i which any director is a pariner, a director or a member.

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivabies based on a provision matax for
different categores of cuslomers. The provision matdx fakes into account hisforical credit foss experience and adjusted for forward looking
information. The expected credit foss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision

matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporing period is as follows:

Ageing

Particulars Average Expected credit loss (%)
Within the credit pericd 0.30%

1-30 days past due 0.76%

314-80 days past due 0.99%

61-90 days past due 1.16%

$1-120 days past due 1.44%

121-150 days past due 163%

151-160 days past due 181%

More than 180 days past due 2.48%

Age of receivables

Particulars As at March 31,
2021
Within the credit parod 2,93,751.79
1-30 days past dus 19,038.23
31-60 days pasl due t7.630.17
61-90 days past due 12,908 .46
91-120 days past due 1.655.38
121-150 days past due 1,492.88
151-180 days past due 6,909.03
More than 180 days past due 7.308.06

¥ in Lakhs
As at March 31,
20820

72,738.41
8,045.72
3,869.48
2,437.50
321237
1,526.39
1,575.68
17,672.25

Movement in the allowance for doubtful receivables (including expected credit loss allowance)

{a} Expected cradit loss alfowance T in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at baginning of ihe year 850.78 1,587 .21
Movement in expecied credit loss allowance on trade receivables caicutated at ietime,
expected cradit lﬁzses 474.53 (646.43)
Balance at end of the year 1,425,531 950,78
{b} Specific allowance for doubtful receivables € in Lakhs
Particutars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at beginning of {he year 1,151.76 2,247.37
Add: Specific allowance on trade receivables 1.629.68 5.602.95
Less: Reversal of aflowance on cottection/written off (3,012.85) {3,698.58)
Balance at end of the year 3.768.59 11,151 76

The concentration of credit nsk is limiled due 1o the fact that the customer base is farge and unreiated.

Refer note 39 as regards management judgemeants with regard to COVID ~ 19 pandemic
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Tata Power Solar Systems Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2621

CiN; U40106MH19892LC330738
Note - 10: Cash and hank balances

Accounting Policy

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an originat maturity of three months

or fegs. which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash manragement.

¥ in Lakhs
Particulars As at Az at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Balances wilh banks
in Current Accounts §3,187.52 187565
in Deposit Accounts (with original malurity three months or less) BOC 00 228500
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 13,997.52 4,160.65
Bank overdrafis {1,727.00) -
Cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cashflows 12,270.52 4,160.65
Reconciliation of Liabilities from Financing Activities
¥in Lakhs
T
Particulars As at Cash Flows Non-cash Ma?:ha:tst
March 31, 2020 Procaeds Repayment Transactions 3021 '
Non-cufrent Borrowings {including Current Malurily of Non-current 15.000.00 - - 15,000.00
Borrowings)
Current Borrowings {excluding Bank Overdraft) 401 2,52 80264 {1.72,150 83} - 8065582
Total 4.01 2,67, 802.64 (1,72,150.83) - 95,655.82
% in iakhs
Particiitars As at Cash Flows Nom-cash As at
15t April 30, 2019 T ti March 31,
stApri 3, Proceeds Repayment ransacuons 2020
Current Borrowings {excluding Bark Overdraft) 54,655.10 1.97,305.79 {2,51,956.83) - 401
Total 54,655.10 1,97,305.79 (2,51,956.88) - 4.01




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 21, 2021
CiN: U40t06MH1989PLCI30738

Note - 11: Other balances with banks

€ in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
in Daposit Accounts - 4,060.00
Total - 4.000.00
Note « 12: Loans
¥ in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at Mareh 31, 2020
Current Non-current Current Nan-current
- At Amortised Cost
Securily Deposits
Cansidered Good- Unsecured 318.76 476.42 206.11 377.39
Considered Doubtful- Unsecured 542.95 37.84 471.92 37.84
86171 514,28 768.03 415.23
{.ess: Impairment joss on secusity deposits (Refer (542 95) {37 84) (471.52) {37.84}
Note 12.1 below)
31876 47642 296,11 377.38
Loans to related parties
Considered Good- Secured B - - -
Considered Good- Unsecured B - - -
Having Signficant Inctease in Credit Risk - - - -
Cradit impaired . - . -
Cther Loans
Considerad Good- Secured - - . -
Considered Good- Unsecured 18.23 - 2823 -
Having Significant Increase in Credil Risk - - - -
Credit Impaired - - - -
Totai 336.99 476.42 324.34 377.39
Note -12.1: Movement of Impairment |oss on security deposits ¥ in Lakhs
Particulars For the year endad| For the year
Mareh 31, 2021 ended March
N 31,2020
Balance at beginning of the year 509.75 477.90
Movement in impairment ioss allowance on secwity deposits 7103 33.50
Less: Reversal of allowance on collection - {1.64)
Batance at end of the year 5B80.79 509 76
Note - 12.2:
Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to Holding Company, Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates: ¥ in Lakhs
Name of the Company Refationship Amount outstanding as at the year Maximum Principal Amount
end Outstanding during the year
{exctuding inferest agcrued) |
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 | March 34, 2021 | March 31, 2020
The Tata Power Company Limited Holding Company - - - 10,000.00
Chirasthaayee Saurya Limited Subsidiary Company - - 2562000 300.00

The Inter- Corporate Deposit were provided to its holding company The Tata Power Company Limited and its subsidiary company Chirasthaayee Saurya
Limited. The tenure of the Inan was 90 days and it carries inferest rate ranging from 3.41% 10 B 4% p.a.

Note - 13: Cther financial assets
% in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 3%, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Non-current Cusrent Non-current

Unsecured, considered good
Acciuals
Interest accrued on bank deposits 672
Others
Balances with Banks:
in Deposit Accounts(with maturily of mere than - 26705
tweleve months) (Refer Note 13,1 below)

- 30.98 -

Other financial assets measured at fair value
Derivative financial instruments cartred at fair value . - 16,034.00

Tatal 16.72 267.05 16,064.98 -

Note 13.1: Balan ih Banks held as Margin Money Deposits against Guarantees.




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

CIN: U40106MH1989PLC330738

Nate - 14: Current and non-current tax assets (net)

T in Lakhs
Particutars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Non.current Current Non-current
iinsecurad, considered good
Tax assels - 4 387.54 - 2,70%.28
Total - 4,387.54 - 2,703.28
Note - 15: Qther current and non-current assets
¥ in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 Ag at March 31, 2020
Gurrent Non-current Curresnt Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances - - - -
Advances other than capital advances
Advances 1o suppliers 14,065.32 - 5.002.24 -
Advange 10 employae 19.38 - 9.22 -
Others
Balances with government authorities 21487 82 188 15,605 97 1.80
{other than inceme taxes)
Prepaid expenses 318.54 - 131.51 -
Other coniract assels 1.571.51 - - -
Oiher receivables 27.23 - 7547 -
Total 37,489.80 1.80 21,124.41 1.80




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
Notas to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2621
CHN: U40168MH1989PLL 330738

Note - 16: Equity share capital

Pasticulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares Re. in Lakhs No. of shares

Authorised share capital:
Equity shares of fs 100/ gach with voting rights 2 .50 00000 2500000 2.50.00.000 25.600 00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid:
Equity shates of Rs 100/- each swith vohing righls 2.29.77 567 22,977 57 2,28.77.567 2297757
Tota; 2,29,77 567 22,977.57 2,28,77,667 22,877.57
{1} Reconciifation of the number of shares cutstanding at the beglnning and at the end of the year:

Particulars No. of shares Rs. In Lakhs
Al Aprid 1, 2019 2.29,77 567 2297757
Changes auring ihe yeat - -
AL March 31, 2020 2,29.77.567 22977 57
Changes during Ihe year - -
At $areh 31, 202¢ 2.29.77.567 22977 57

(il Detail of the rights, preferances and restrictions attached to equity shares
£quity Shares

The Company has only one class of Equily Share, having a par vaiue of Rs 100/ Each holder of equidy shares is entilled to one vole per share in the evert of tguicauon of the Company,
the halders of the equity shares wi be eniitied 10 receive any of the remaining assets of e company, after distribution of alf preterential amourt The distribution wil be I proportion 1o
number of equdy shates hold by the shareholders. The equity shares ssued on canversion of the preference shares have pani-passu aghts to the earier issued equily shaes.

{iil} Details of shares hcld by each sharcholder holding more than 5% sharas:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Number of shares } % hoiding in that | Number of shares§ % holding in that
held class of shares held class of shares

Cquity shares with volng ngnis
The Tala Power Company Limited, the Holding Company and its nomwtees 2.29.77.567 100% 2.20.77.567 100%,
Note - 17: Cther equily

TinLakhs

Padiculars Securitics. General reserve Capitat Deamed equity | Effective postion |Retained earnings Totaf
premium redemption of cash flow
Reserve hedge Reserve
{Refer Note 3.2}

As at Aprd 1, 2019 14,587 5% 4.735.00 2,29500 1.261.87 1,526.30 24 40526
Profit for the year - - - - B 12.267 65 12.267 65
Other comprenensve Income f (expense) ansing from - - - 9.641 14 {1t2 28) 9.528 86
remeasurerments of the defmed benefit fabinlies ! (asset) (net
of tax)
As at March 31, 2620 14,587.09 4,735.00 2,295.60 1,261.87 9,641.14 13.681.67 46,201.77
Profit for the year - - - 20 83697 20,839.97
Olhes comprehensive Income / {expense) ansing from - - 127.820.05) 143.03 27 677 .03)
rameasurements of the defined beriefit fabikties / {asset) (nel
of lax}
As at March 31, 2021 14,587.09 4,735.00 2.295.00 1,261.87 {18,178.92) 34.664.67 38,364.71

Note - 17.1 : Securities Premium
Amounts received on issu@ of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as secunhes premum.

Nate - 17.2 : Genersl reserve

The general reserva is used from time Lo ima 10 ranster profils from retained earnings for appropriation purpases. Thete is no policy of regular ransfec As the general raserve s created by a lransfer rom onp
component of eguity 1o another and i nol an dem of olher comprehensive ncome lems Inchxiaod i the general reserve wall not be reclassified subseguently 10 proft of joss.

Note - 17.3 : Capital redemption Reserve

Any profit or ioss on purchase, sale. issue or cancelizion of the Company's own equily mstruments is ransferred o capilal redemplion reserve,

Note - 17.4 1 Deemed equity
The deemad equty pertains 1o the accrugd interest on the preference shares waived by the prelerente shasenaiders

Note - 17.5 : Retained eamings
The amount can be distibulad by e Company as dadend o its equily shareholders.

Nole - 17.6 : ltem of Other Comprehensive income

The &ffeclive portion of the gain or oss on ke hedging instrument ts recognised in OCI in the cash Mow hedge reserve AMounts recognised in e effectve portion of cash flow hedgas 1 zecfassihied to the

slatement of profis and loss when 1he hadged item atecls profil or loss
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Note - 18.1: Non Current Borrowings

Zin Lakhs

Particuiars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 1
March 31, 2020

A,  Secured horrowings

{a) Term Loans from banks(Refer Nole 18.2 befow) 1500000 -
15,000.00 -
Less: Current Maturities of fong term barrgwings 4,000.00
Total 11,000.00 -

Naote - 18.2: Term Loan

Secured through a pan passu charge over ail the present and future movable fixed #5615 with minumum asset cover of 1.25x of the loan sanclioned. The
rate of interest ranges from 6.95% to 7.1%. Repayment terms include 6 months moratorium from the date of 1st disbursement, i.e., 15t Novemnber 2020,

followed by 10 Equal Quarterly Instalments.

Nota - 18.3: Current Barrowings

¥ in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

A, Secured bonrowings
{a) Leans repayable on demand from banks

Bank overdraft {Refer Note 18 4 below) 348,88 -

Cash Credit from Bank (Refer Note 18.5 below) 1.378.14

Short-term Loans (Reter Note 18.6 below) 23141088 4.01
Total secured borrowings 25,137.88 401

B. lUnsecured borrowings

{a) Qiher ioans

Buyers credit (Refer Note 18.7 below) 68,261.74 -
(b) From Related Parties (Refer Note 18.8 below and Note 36) £0,983.20 -
Total unsecured borrowings 57,244.94 -
Total 82,382.82 4.01

Note - 18.4: Bank overdraft

Secured through a pari pasau charge by hypothecation of stores, raw materials. work-in-prograss, finished goods and book debis.

Note - 18.5: Cash Credit from Bank
Secured Cash Credit from Bank is the short term facilily for a period of 52 days with 6 66% interest charge.

Note - 18.8: Working Capital Demand Loan

Short term loan is the working capital demand loan facitily provided by the banks secured through a pari passu charge on current assats of the company. This short term

facility is provided for 7 to 90 days. The iterests charges on such facliities ranges between 4.8% t0 9.15%.

Note - 18.7: Buyers credit

Buyers credit are short lerm facilities provided for 30 to 80 days The interest chasge on the buyers credit ranges between 0.58% to 0.65%.

Note - 18.8: Loans from Related parties
Interest on shert term loans from related ranges between 3.51% to 8.40%

Note - 19: Trade payables

2 inLakhs
Particuiars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Noa-current Current Non-current

Yrade payable for goods and services

- Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small 4,675.29 - 2.298.31 -

enterprise (Refer Note 33)

- Total owtstanding dues of creditors other than miceo 2.08,162.99 - 61,753.77 -

enterprise and smalt enterprise
Total 2,12,639.28 . 64,052.08 -

The average credil period for purchase of certain goods from is 30 to S0 days. No interest is charged on lrade payables.
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Mote - 20: Other Financial Liabilities

Z in Lakhs
Particulars Ag at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Man-current Current Non-current
Other financial Habliities measured at amortised cost
{a) Current Malurities of Long-term Debt 4.000.00 - - -
{by nterest accrued {Refer Note 20.1 below) 278.18 - 0.01 -
(€) Interest on MSME {Refer Note 33) 32628 - 6B 54 -
{d) Creditors for capital suppliesiservices 8,562 37 - 859.47 -
(@) Trade 7 securily deposits received 247 92 - 8832 -
13,414.76 - 1,016.34 -
Other financlal liabilities measured at fair value
Derivalive financial instruments carried at fair value 14,709.74 - - -
14,709.74 - - -
Total 28,124.50 - 1,016.34 -

Note - 20.1: Interest accrued

The interest accrued inclides interest accrued but not dus on borrowings amounting to Rs. 278,18 Lakhs {As at March 31, 2020 - Rs. 0.01 Lakhs). Refer
Mote 18.2, Note 18.5, Note 18.6 and Note 18.7 for the terms of the interest rate on ¢he berrowings

Note - 21: Current and non-current tax tiabilities (net)

Zin Lakhs
Particutars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Nan-current Current Non-current
Income tax payable 4.430.69 30266 - 302.86
Total 4,430.69 30266 - J02.686

Note - 22: Provisions

Accounting Policy

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legat or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an culficw of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliabie estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reirmbisement is virtualy certain, The expense retating 1o a prowision is presented in the Statement of profit and iosa ret of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of meney is malerial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the nsks specific to the fiability.
iwhen discounling is vsed, the increase in the provision due 1o the pagsage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits 1o be denved by the Company fram a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeling
its obligations under the conteact. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expecied cost of terminating the contract and the expected nel cost of
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment (055 on the assets assoctated with that contract.

A contingent tiability is a possible obfigation that asises from past events whose existence will e confirmed by the ccoutrence or non-ocourrence of ane of more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Company of a present obtigation thai is not recognized because i is not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent {iabilily also arises in exiremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be tecognized because it cannot be measured redably.
The Company does nat recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Provisions and cantingent Babitily are reviewed &t each balance sheet,

Provision for warranty

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation: are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to setlle the Company's obligation. These eslimates are established using histerical information on the nature,

frequency angd average cost of warranly clatms and management estimates regasding possible future incidence based on corrective actions on product failures. The timing
of ouliows will vary as and when warranty ciatm will arise.
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¥ in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Curreni Non-current Current Non-current
(a) Provision {or employee banefils
Compensated absences {Rafer Note 22.2) 57.34 1,463 53 212.04 1,312.84
Gratuity (Refer Note 22.2) 52.46 2578.58 58.64 2,430.36
Post Employee Benefits (Refer Note 22.2) - 328 - -
Other defined benefit plan (Refer Note 22.2) 40.39 31982 40.48 355 68
Other employee banefits {Refer Mote 22.2) 39.80 187 34 24 .61 197.48
{b} Other Provisions
Warranty {Refer Note 22.1 below) 1,035.82 5,082.11 859.81 3,688.63
Rectification work {Refer Note 22 1 below) 199.80 - 449.80 -
Provision for foreseeable losses (Refer Nete 22.1 below) 5,723.54 - 325.64 -
Total 7.158.15 §.544.66 1.970.92 7.985.99
Note - 22 1: Provision for warranty and rectification work
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{2 in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)
Warranty Rectification work Warranty Rectification
Provision Provision WOrk
Balance as at beginning of the year 4.549 44 449,80 3,884.64 1,339.63
Provision made during the year 2,649.57 - 1.044.62 -
Amounts incurrediutétized during the year {1,071.08) (250.00) {359.82) (8B9.83)
Balance as at the end of the year 6,127.93 199.80 4,543.44 449.80

Of the above the amounts expected to be incurred within a year amounts lo Rs. 1,035.82 Lakhs (March 31, 2020 . Rs. 859.81 Lakhs). The warranty expenditure is
expected to be incurred over the warranty life of the products as contracted, which varies from 10 to 25 years.

The provision for warranty claims represents the present value of the management's best sslimate of the future cutflow of economic benefits thal will be required under the
Company's obligations for warranties under sales of goods legisiation. The estimate has been made on the basis of hislorical warranty fends and may vary as a result of
new materials, aitered manufacturing processes of cther events affecting procuct qualily.

The provision for reclification work relates lo the estimated cost of werk agreed o e carned out for the rectification of goods suppiied o the customers. The amount is
anticipated to ba spent in the year 2021-22. These amounts have not been discounted for the purposes of measuring the provision for rectification woik. because the effect
is not matenal

Pravision for foreseeable loss represents 10s$ provided for onerows conleacts.
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Note - 22.2: Emiployee berofit plan
Ruler nole 26 as regards policy on emplyee benefits

{ij Detined Contribution plan

The Company mekes providen! fund and superanniation fund contnbuton which sie defined contnbubion plans, for cualfyrng employaes Under e schemes, the Company &s required o contiibide 8 specified prieznlage of the payich
o515 {o fund the benebls. Yhe Company recognised Rs £3t 99 Lakhs {for the year ended Mareh 31, 2020 - Rs 530 41 Lakhs) for Providest Fund coninbutions, Rs. 79 58 Lakhs {year snded March 31, 2070 - Rs. 72 84 Lakhs) for
Suparanauation Funa conlriulions, included 85 a part of conlstibon to providen! fund and aihér (unds i Nole 26 Employees Benefit Expenses The Company recogmsed Rs. 168 Lakns (for he year ended March 39,2000 -Rs 0 75

Lakhs) for Employee State Insurance Scheme coniributions, mcluded &S a part of sfalf weilare in Nole 26 Employaes Beneld £ s. The payatle (0 Ihose plans by tha Company are alrales spechiod o the rules of the
schemes

(it} Defined benelil plans

The Tompany offers the lollovsng employte defined benefl schemes 1o (s employeaslex-ampliyees

¢ Grahaty (nifuded as z part of contribution 1n provident fund and olhes fund in Nale 26 Employees Benelits Expense)

4. Pension (pest relirement benefds, 1o the erstwhide managng dracior (inchuded as a parl of Salary and Wages in Nate 26 Employess Benafits Expense;
# Posi-Empioymen] Medical Benefiis (posl-employment health care bensiits (0 supsrannusted empioyees in Nole 78 Empioyees Bonefds Expense)

. Ex-Grata Doath Bonefil (granting ex-gratia is case of Geats dunng service in Note 26 Employees Benelis Expense)

¥ Retirement GHl {grankng a pre-d Surn as ret 1t on Super lion of an employee in Nole 26 Emplayees Benelts Expensa)

Investmon Risk:

The presen vaiue of delned benefil plan habitty is calcwiated using a disceenl rale which is determned by reference lo the prevaifing markel yields of Indian govemmenl securidies ay atihe bolarce sheet date for he estimated term o
1he ohigatons,

nterest Risk:
A decrease in the yield of indian government secunlies wi merease the plan liabdiy

Lenggvity Risk
The present vaiue of the defined benetd plan iobdity 15 calcutated by reference lo the best eslimate of the morality of plan partkipanss both during and aller their emplay t AR 0 the e y of the pfan LRt
will ;nCraase e pran‘s Sabdily.

Salary Risk:
The presenl value of e defined bereli plan babdity 1s calcutated by teference 1o the fulure salaries. In paricular, thede is a rsk for the Company that any adverse salary growth can result in an intrease in £251 of provding these
banefs o empioyees in future

In respect of the phan, Sre most recent 2ctaanal vatvation of the plan assets and the present vakue of [he defined benafit oblgalion wety tarmed out 35 al March 31, 2021 by prefessionat acfuary The present value of the defined beneld
obiigation, and the relilnd curmren! service cost and paid senics Losl, were messured usitg) the projected und cost credd mathed

The principat assumptions used for the purpeses of the actuarizt valuations were as follows:

Particulars Voluation as al
March 31, 2024 { March 34, 2020
Graluity, compensated keave sbsences and pension-
DV scount rate (p.a} 650% 6.50%
Expected cale of salary increase (pa) RMansgement . 73 Managerent- 7%
Hon Management - 5% Nee Managerneny - 5%
Adtrtzon (pa Management: 21-44 years - |Mensgement 21-44 years.
% 5%

45 years snd above - 2% 45 years and above - 2%
HNont Management 6.5% Hon Managernent: 0 5%

Expecled réfurm n plsn assels (p a.t 6.50% &.50%
Pohson ndrgase rata (pa) L, 5%
fhonaldly lanles Indian Assured Lives incaan Assured Lives

Mortahty (G5-08) Uil Table | Monatty (35-08) Uk Tabke

1 The discount rale 15 based on e prevading madket yelts of tnden Government securites a5 o batance sheed daie for the esbmated lerms of the abbgation
2. The estimates of fulre satary nicreases considerad takes o Accoun! fhe inflation, senionly, promotion and athes relevant facwors

3 In orcer 10 protect Ihe capital and oplimae refurns wilhin acceptabio nisk parsmatars, the plan asse's are mainkained vath an nsuiel managed fund and is web divorsed

Amauats recogaised in statement of profit and 1oss in respect of thesa defined benefits plans are as{ ¥inlakhs
Particutars Gratuity Pengion Oihers benelits
For the year ended For the yexr ended Fortha year ended | For the yezr ended for the year For the yoar
March 31, 2621 March 3, 2026 March 31, 2821 Skareh 31, 2020 anded ended

March 31, 202t {March 31, 2020

Currerd Service Cost 202.2¢ 17559 - 003 - 117
Pas! Service Cosl .

. - - - 050
Past Service Cost - plan amendmants . - - - . .
Net lnterest expense 5863 14083 74.37 2741 - 078
immediale recognition of (gans)iesses - sthet long term employes benefit plans - - - -
Components of defined bonelil costs recognised in profil or loss 360.84 318.42 2437 2744 - 285
Rameasuremant on the net defined benefit tisbility ; T inLakhs
Particulars Gratuity Pension Others benefils
For the year ended For tho year ended For the yesr ended | For the year ended For the year For the year
March 31, 2021 March 1, 2020 March 34, 2024 March 31, 2020 ended endad

Karch 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Return on the ned defined benefd habiity

Refurn on plan assets excludiag amounts inchuhed in interes! cosvincome) 081 . - - -

Actuanal {gans)Aosses arising from changes in demopraphic assumplions . . - - -

Actuatiat {gains)iesses arising from changes in financsal assumptions (30 92) 255.08 {2 29} 21.47 {0 04} .
Actuanal {gains)iosses ansing from expenence [162.40) (97.27) 039 {1.75) iR 14 833
Componenis of delined benefit custs @ in other p 1sive incomo {192.52) 157.78 1.80) 18.72 3.26 {4.93)
Total 158,32 A74.21 2247 5748 3.28 [2.08)

The cixtrent service cost and the nelnterest expense fof the yesr ate :nciuded n the Employes benafs expanse’ ine iem m the stalement of proff and loss.
Tha remeasurernont of the nel defined benefd kabikty is included in alher comprehensive meome
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The amount included in the balance sheet arising from $he entily's obligation sn respect of its delined bonelit plans is as follows:

These sensitvities have bean caituialed 1o show the movement in defined benefit obugation in isolalion and assuming thare arg no ofer Changes In markat cendmons al Ihe accounting date. There

have been no changes f1ten Ihe previous penods in the methods and assumplions wsed in praparing the sensitivity analyses

2 in Lakhs
Particulars Gratuity Pensicn Others |
For tho yzar enced For the year ended Far the year ended For lhre yaar ended For the year Forthe year
March 31, 2011 March 3, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 ended ended
March 29, 2021 | March 3%, 2020
Ei’reseﬂl wilug of Junded defined Henelit otigation 2548 11 2 505 14 376.07 20816 128 T
Fair value 9f plan assets 13727y (16.14) . - .
Funded siatus 2631.04 2489 00 376.07 {395 163 (3 28) .
et (liability} recognised in balance sheet {2.631.04) (2,483.00] 376.07 (396,15} [3.28) N
[Current {fability] (52.46) {58.64} (40.39) {40.38) T .
[Non-current (tiabihty) {2.576.58) 12,430.36) 416.48 {355.78) {1.28)] -
[Estimated amount of contribution in ihe imemediate nexd year 52.46 53.64 - : - N
Movemants in the present value of the definad benefit obligations are as follows: ¥in Lakhs
Particuiars Grajuity Pension Others
For tha year onded For tha year ended Fot the yearonded | For the year ended For the year Faor the year
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 Karch 31, 2025 Mareh M, 2020 ended ended
Harch 31, 2621 | Macch 34, 2020
Cpening cafined benatil abligations 2,805 14 1957 56 S 6 39165 X1
Currenl service cost 0221 17558 - 003 157
interest Cosl 159.70 $42.14 2437 T4t . 078
{Acquisitions {eredil)icost 13241 145.57 - 0.3y 33z {7 62}
Acluanal (Gainsiicsses ansiag fom changes in cemographic sssumplions - 3.23 - - . -
Acluarial (Gaing)iosses arising from changes in lnangial assumptisns (30:93) 251.73 (2 20 21 47 004y .
Acluaniat {Gainsyiosses anising from expenence assumphions {162 A0} {97 27} 239 (1753 - $4.93)
Past Service Cost | includig kisses qgains) on cunaiimen! . - - - 056
Buiefils paid disectly by e Compariy {13532} (949 {42 55) 142.55) .
B s paid from plan assets {18.50} {64 O1) - - - -
Closing dalined benefil obligation 2.648.31 1,505.14 are.07 386,16 .28 .00
Hovements in the fair value of the plan assals are as follows: T in Lakhs
Pariculars Graluity Pension Qihers benedits
For tha yoar anded For ihe year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the yaar For the yoar
Harch 24, 2021 March 3t, 2620 March 3%, 2021 Mzreh 31, 2020 ended ended
Mzrch 31,2021 | March 31, 2028
Opening fat value of plan assals 1614 20862 - - . -
Intecest incoma 108 131 -
Remeasurement gains/ingses) - - - - -
Actwal retum on plan assets fess nleresl on plan assets 8 . -
Contrulion from the amployer 1938 58.22 -
[of from plan pancipant - B -
Benells pod i.18.50) {G4.01} - -
Ciosing tair vitlue of plan assets 17.27 16.14 - - v -
The weighted averaqe duralion of the benaiz obligalion as al March 31, 2021 5 7 4 yesrs
Sensitivity Analysis
Thae Isiowing LabK suAW0RNZes e mpact in peicentage telms on the reported dotingd bonafit 21 the and of tha reponing penod arising on account changes in these Mree key parameters
Particutars Macch 31, 2021 March 39, 2020
{Discount rate
Effect on DEO due lo 0.5% intrease m {xscount Rate {158 6% {158.57)|
Effect on DBO dow 10 0 5% decrease in Discounl Rate 171490 169.65
PensioniSalary increase rale
£ffeci on DBO doe to 8.5% ncrease in Pension Escatalion Rale 173 16942
£lfect on DBC due to 0.5% decrease n Pension Escalation Rate {16001} {167 72)
Wadital inflation Rate
Elfect on DRO due to §.5% increase i Medical Inflalion Rale -
Eitect on DBO due fo & 5% decrease in Medicat Inflation Rate - -
Life expectancy
Eflect on DRO dee (0 1 year increase in longeviy 28.93 2173
Efleet oa DBO dae to 1 year decrease in longevily {26 57 {27.40)

The led matunily analysis of ung defined benedit obitgation is as follows: Tin Lakhs
Particulars Gratuity Pension Qthers benelils
For the year ended For the year ended Far the year ended For the year ended For the year For the year
March M, 1021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 Karch 31, 2020 ended ended
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

[Wilha 1 year 7195 FERT 370 4178 . B
Beatween 1 - 2 years a7 92 Yo 176 4z 02 D14 .
Between 2 - 3 years 10997 122.83 4156 4202 0.15 -
Betwesn 3 - 4 years 1A 81 112 58 4108 41 76 0.15 -
Beiween 4 - 5 years 9319 164 68 4030 .22 D.17 -
Beyend 5 years 1.635.32 1.333.05 174 81 187 .53 1.4
Movement of Provision of Comp 4 Leave Ab

€in Lakhs

Particulars Harch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Openang balance 1524 58 111394
Ak Expenses Tor the year 33383 570.49
Less: Paymen! made dunng the year {327 643 {159.55)
Closing Biance 1.530.87 1,524.28
Expanse recogrised :n Statemenl of Preblit and Loss 333.63 §70.49
Current portton of provision bazlnce 67.34 212.04
Non- current portion of prevision balance 1.463.5% 1,312.84
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Note - 23: Other current and non-current liabilities

¢ In Lakhs
Particulars As at March 34, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Non-current Current Non-current

(&) Advances received from customers 26,310.80 - 28,028.37 e T
{0} Govermnment grant (Refer Note 23.% below) - 1,214.75 - 121475
{c) Slatutory dues {other than income taxes) 582.73 - 47925 -
{d) Income received in advance (uneamed revenue) 59 60426 2246180 -
{e) Other liabililies 69.97 - 4.37 .
Total 86,567.76 1,214.75 50,973.59 1,214.75

Note - 23.1: Government grant

Accounting Policy

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will compiy with the condilions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systemalic basis over ihe periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the relaled costs for which the

grants are intended {c compensate.

Speciicatly, government grants whose primary condition is thal the Company should purchase, constract or otherwise acquire non-current assels are recognised as
deferred revenue in lhe consolidated balance sheet and transfermed to profit of loss on a systematic and rafional basis over the useful fives of the related assets.

Govemment grants that are receivable as compansation for expenses or iosses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the pedod in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-marke! rate of interest is treated as a government grant. measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair

value of the loan based on prevaing market inlerest rates.

Movement in Government Grang T in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 34, 2020
Balance al beginning of the year 1214 75 1.126.21
Add: Received during the year - 88.54
Less: Released {0 the statement of profil ardt loss - -
Balance at end of the year 1,214.75 1,214 75

The Company has seceived government grants in the form of import duly exemption on purchase of capital goods, to be used fos production of items for expons. based
on the terms of the Export Prometion Capital Goods {(EPCG) scheme. The Company secognises an income from such graats based on meeting the expon obligations as

specified under the EPCG scheme.
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Note - 24; Revenue from operations

Accounting Policy

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controis the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on deiivery of the goods.

Revenues from turnkey contracts, which are generally time bound fixed price contracts, are recognised over the life of the
contract using the proportionate completion method, with contract costs determining the degree of completion. Foreseeable
losses on such contracts are recognised when probable.

Delayed payment charges and interest on deiayed payments leviable as per the relevant contracts are recognised on actuat
realisation or accrued based on an assessment of certainty of realization supporied by either an acknowledgement from
customers or on receipt of favourabie order from regulator / authorities.

Revenue on installation and commissioning contracts are recognized as per the terms of contract.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recagnised pro-rata over the period of the contract,

Refer Note 23.1 as regards policy on government grant.

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2020
(&) Revenue from sale of goods and services 5,05,426.96 2.07,878.08
(b) Revenue from rendering of maintenance services 5,608.01 522231
(c) Other operating revenue
- Sale of scrap 411.17 361.26
- Sale of scrips for duty exemption 434.09 226.83
- Misceitaneous Revenue 1.1 381.61
Total 5,11,891.34 2,14,070.09
The following table provides information about the company's revenue from contracts with customers:
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2021 ended

March 31, 2020

Timing of revenue recognition {excluding other operating revenue)

Goods transferred at a point in time 298.335.03 28,535.62
Services transferred over time 4.81,699.94 1,84,564.77
Total 5,11,034.97 2,13,100.39
india 5,11,019.59 20241472
Qutside India 15.38 10,685.67
Total 5,11,034.97 2,13,100.29
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The following table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities from contract with customers:

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2020

Confract Assets
Recoverable from Customers

Non-current - -

Current 4.150.97 1,423.26
Total Contract Assets 4,150.97 1,423.26
Contract Liabilities
Advance from Customers

Non-current - -

Current 26.310.80 28,028.37
Liabilities towards Customers

Non-current - -

Current 59,604.26 22.451.60
Total Contract Liabilities 85,815.06 50,480.97
Receivables
Trade Receivables (Gross)

Non-current 21,801 .45 3.482.74

Current 3,38,800.93 1,07,5684.76
Unbilled Revenue

Non-current - -

Current 4 .150.97 1,423.26
{Less): Allowances for Doubtful Debts

Non-current (117.97) {455.10)

Current {5.075,93) {11,647.44)
Net Receivables 3,59,659.45 1,00,3988.22

Note: Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract
Hability is the entity's obfigation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration
from the customer in advance. Coniract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional and

contract liabilities are recognized as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.
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Particulars

For the year ended

For the year

March 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2020

Opening Balance (excluding trade receivabies and trade payables)

Recoverable from Customers 1.423.26 2,552.04

Liabilities towards Customers 50,489.97 26,241.52
Revenue recognsied during the year from contracts 4,76,254.68 1,79,145.30
Revenue recognsied during the year that was included in the opening contract 2246180 2142528
liability
Closing Balance (excluding trade receivables and trade payables)

Recoverable from Customers 4,150.97 1,423.26

Liabilities towards Customers 85,915.06 50,489.97

Note -25 Other income

Accounting Policy

Interest iIncome

Interest income from & financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when

shareholders approve the dividend.

Refer note 2.3.5 as regards policy on fair valuation measurement with regard to Financia! instruments.
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Zin Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2020
(a) interest income {Refer Note (i) below) 2,407.86 336.38
{b) Other non-operating income {net of expenses directly attributable to 3.60 274
such income)} (Refer Note (ii) below)
(c) Profit from Sale of Investments (Net) 12.90 4988.15
(d) Net loss / (gain) on foreign currency transactions - 1,702.94
Total 2,424.36 2,540.21
Notes
{i Interest income comprises :
Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits (Refer Note 36) 1,179.65 14.26
Interest from banks on deposits 229.83 149.84
Interest on delays in customer payments - 0.00
Interest on electricity deposits - 16.05
Interest Income from Income-Tax Refund 37.00 155,53
tnterest Income from Revenue Contracts {Refer Note 36) 961.22 -
Other Interest 0.16 0.70
Total 2,407.86 336.38
(i} Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly
attributable to such income) :
Misceltanecus Income 3.60 2.74
Total 3.60 2.74
(iii} Profit from sale/ fair valuation of investments {Net)
Current Investments 12.90 498.15
Total 12.90 498.15

Note -26 Employee benefits expenses

Accounting Policy

Retirement and ofher employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund are defined contribution scheme.
The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable. The Company recognizes contribution payable to
provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. if the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet reporting date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. if the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is

recognized as an asset 10 the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash
refund.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects lo pay as a
result of the unused entitltement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee

benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the year-end.
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The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the batance sheet, 1o the extent it does not have an unconditional
right to defer its settlement for twelve manths after the reporting date.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method using
actuarial valuation to be carried out at each balance sheet date.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans
to recognise the obligation on a net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiiing, exciuding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit Hability and the retum on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCH1 in the period in which they occur, Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earier of;
a. The date of the pian amendment or curtailment, and
b. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service cosls, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

b. Net interest expense or income.

# in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2020

(&) Salaries and wages 8,707.23 10,041.78
(b) Contribution to Provident Fund 432.34 427.00
{c) Contribution to Superannuation Fund 79.66 72.84
(d) Retiring Gratuities 360.84 . 337.96
(e} Compensated Absences 333.863 570.49
1) Pension Scheme 124.02 130.85
{g) Staff welfare expenses 1.492.62 1,263.74
Total 12,530.34 12,844.66

Note -27 Finance costs

Accounting Policy

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their inlended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the staternent of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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¥ in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2020
{a) Interest expense
Interest on bank overdraft, related party borrowings and other 4,954.93 3,862.64
borrowings
Interest on delayed payment of MSME vendor 257.75 68.54
(b} Other borrowing costs
Bank charges 98.30 23.30
Other finance costs 2,742.89 -
Total 8,053.87 3,954.48
Note -28: Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Refer Note 4 and Note 5 as regards policy on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
¥ in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2020
Depreciation of Property, Plant and equipment (Refer Note 4) 2,368.40 1,600.72
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 5) 129.81 164.15
Totai 2,498.21 1,764.87
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Note -29 Other expenses

Zin Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 ltarch 31, 2020
Stores and spares consumed 841.01 928.83
Effiuent processing charges 156.54 314.78
Power, fuel, water & oil consumed 1,5676.49 1,744 87
Freight and handling charges 6,472.40 1,611.56
Rent including lease rentals 3,699.16 1,835.71
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 373.07 22862
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery 1,334.45 987.76
Repairs and maintenance - Others 642.10 251.81
Rates and taxes 137.18 32553
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (CSR) under 282.09 24713
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Insurance charges 748.78 316.54
Commission, discounts and rebates 861.27 170.29
Bad Debts 186.22 27.43
impairment of financial assets {Refer Note 29.3 below} (619.38) 1,289.83
Net loss / {gain) on foreign currency transactions 309.95 1,704.30
Loss on fixed assets written off 549 0.63
Provision for warranty 2,649.57 1,044.62
Legal and other professional costs (Refer Note 29.1 below) 1,390.78 1,636.12
Advertisement, promotion and selling expenses 315872 855.78
Travelling expenses 1,225.46 1,243.68
Cost of service-cutsourced 8,033.95 7.536.86
Director fees 8.85 2.00
Tata brand equity 1,182.14 535.24
Other general expenses 3,003.99 2.785.23
Total 34,815.25 27,429.15
Note-29.1:Payment o auditors included in legal and other professional costs
(exciuding applicable taxes) ¥ in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(a) For Statutory Audit 33.00 21.80
(b) For Tax Audit 4.00 3.00
{c) For Other Services 13.00 5.00
{d) For reimbursement of expenses 3.22 472
Total 53.22 34.52




Note-29.2: Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

Tin Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Amount required fo be spent by the Company during the year 282.09 24713
Total 282.09 247.13
¥ in Lakhs

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Amount spent during the year on;

In cashibank

In cash/bank

(i) Construction / Acquisition of any asset

(i} On purposes other than (i) above 282.09 24713
Includes Rs. 282.08 lakhs contributed to Tata Power Community Development Trust.
Note - 298.3: Impairment losses on financial assets and reversal of impairment on financial assets

Zin Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Impairment loss allowance on trade receivables (Refer Note 9.1} 2,104.21 4,956.52
Impairment loss aliowance on deposits (Refer Note 12.1) 71.03 33.50
2,175.24 4,990.02
Reversal of impairment losses on deposits (Refer Note 12.1) - (1.64)
Reversal of impairment losses on trade receivables {Refer Note 9.1) (9,012.84) (3,698.56)
Allowances considered as bad debts during the year 6,218.22 -
Totai (619.38) 1,289.82




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
CIN: U40106MH1989PL.C330738

Note -30 Income Tax

Accounting Policy

Current income lax

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for he year. Taxable profit differs
from net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s Hlabitity for current tax is calculated using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacled by the end of the reporiing period.

Current income lax relating to items recognised outside profit or 10ss is recognised outside profit or toss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax ilems are recognised in correlation o the underlying transaction either in OCt or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate.

Note- 30.1: Iincame Tax Expenses

Note- 30.1.1: Income taxes recognised in the statement of profit and loss Tin Lakhs
Particulars For the year
For the year ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current tax
in respect of the curent year 7.3156.86 3.411.34
In respec! of the earlier years - 15.92
Deferrad tax
In respect of the current year {5.706.30} -
In respect of the eartier years - -
Remeasurement of Deferred Tax on account of New Tax Regime (Net) - -
Total income tax expense recognised in the cutrent year 1,610.56 3,427.26
Note- 30.1.2: The income fax expense for the year can be reconcited to the accounting profit as follows:
¥in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2020
Profit before tax 22.450.53 15,694.91
income tax expense calcuiated at 25.168% (2019-20: 34.944%) 5,650.35 5,484.43
Eifect of income that is exempt from taxation - -
Effect of expenses thal are net deductible in determining taxable profit 37769 2.088.87
Unrecognized deferred lax asset as al the beginning of the year {4,417 48)
Effect of concessions {other allowances) - (1,183.73)
Effect of unused tax insses and tax offsets nol recognised as deferred tax assets - ~
Unrecognized tax credit (MAT) utifised during the current year - {2,978.23)
Others (Income 1ax pertaining to earlier years) ~ 15.92
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 1,610.56 3,427.28
Note- 30.1.3: Income tax recognised directly in other comprebensive income ¥ in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2020
Current tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation 48.11 {60.31)
Deferred tax
Derivative financial instruments designated and effective as hedging instruments carried at fair (9.356.63) 3.242.58
value
Tota! income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (9,308.52) 3,182.27
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into: For the year ended For the year
March 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2020
ltems that witl net be reclassified to profit or foss 48.11 0.3
ltems that may be reclassified ta profit or loss {9,356.63) 3,242.58
{9,308.52) 3,182.27
T,
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Note » 31: Deferred tax balance
Deferred tax

Oeferred 1ax Is the tax expecied 1o be payable or recoverable on differences between (he carrying values of assels and liabilities in the financial statements and the
comesponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxabie profi and is accounted for using the balance sheet Hability model. Deferred tax labilties are generally
recognised for alt the taxable terporary differences. in contrast, deferred assets are only racognised 1o the extent thal is probable that fsture taxabie profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income lax assets are recognized for afl deduclible lemperary differences, camy forward of unused tax credits and unused tax josses, to the extent mal i is

probable that taxasle profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits andt unused tax losses can
be ulilized.

The carrying amount of deferved income tax assels is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer prabable that sufficient taxabie
profit will be available lo allow all or pant of the deferred income tax assel 1o be wtilized.

Deferred income tax assels and liabililies are measured al the tax rates ihat are expecled to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liabllity is selited. pased
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have heen enacted or substantively enacted at ihe balance sheet date

Deferred tax relaling to items recognised outside profit or Ioss is recognised outside profit or Joss {either in other comprehensive income of in equity). Deferrea tax tems
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCK or directly in equity

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a fegally enforceable right exisls 1o sel off current tax assels agains! currenl tax fiabifities and the deferreg
taxes refate to the same taxabie entily and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Allemative Tax ('MAT') paid in accordance with the fax [aws in India, which is fikety to give fulure economic benefits in the form of
availabilily of set off againsi fulure income tax liability. Accardingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax assel in the balance sheet when the assef can be measured
reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the assel will be realized

The following is the analysis of deferred dax assets/ {fiabifities) presented in ihe halance sheet:

Tin Lakhs
Particutars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Defered tax assets 11,820.36 -
Deferred tax labilties - -3,242.58
Net Deferred Tax Asset{liabitity) 11,820.36 -3,242.58
¥in Lakhs
202021 Opening Recognised in Racognised in Recognised Restated
batance profit or loss other directly in equity closing
comprehensive Balance
income {note 2)
Deferred tax assets/ {ilabifities) In relation to:
Differance in the writlen down value of fixed assets {1.308.13 (640,23} - - (1.248.36}
Provisions for Employee benefits 1,324.38 (185.48) - - 1.138.89
Provisions for doubtfud dedts and advances 317427 (1,720.89) - - 145338
Provision for Warranty 1,145.00 397.28 - - 1.542.28
Derivative tinancial instruments designated for hedging (3.242.58) - 9356663 - 6,114.05
Othes disallowances 81.96 343816 . 3,520.12
Sup-Total 1,174.90 1,288.83 9,356.63 . 11,828.36
Unabsorbed tax loss and depreciation - - - . -
Minimumn Alternate Tax Credit - - - - -
Less: Adjustments {Refer Nate below) {4.417 48) 441748 - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset / {Liability] {3,242.58) 5,706.31 9,356.63 - 11,820.36
¥ in Lakhs
2019.20 Opening Recognised In Recognised in Recognised Closing Restated
balance profit ar loss othar directly in equity balance closing
comprehensive Balance
income {note 2}
Deferred tax assets/ {liabilities) in refation to:
Difference in the writien down vatue of fixed assets {1.154.06Y (661.98) - - 11,818.04) (1.308.13)
Provisions for Employee benefils 1.258.21 52008 80.3 - 1.833.60 1,324.38
Provistons for doubiful debis and advances 3.617.07 789.88 - - 4,405.75 317427
Provision for Warranty 1,225.89 363.68 - - 1,589.57 1,145.00
Derivative financial instruments designated for hedging - - {3.242.58) - {3,242.58} {3,242.58)
Other disallowances 380.65 (266.87) - £13.78 8186
Sub-Totat 5,327.78 744,59 {3.182.27) . 2,890.08 1,474.90
Unabsorbed tax loss and depreciation - - : - - - -
Minimum Alternate Tax Cregit 3,185.84 (3.155.84; - - - B
Less: Adjustments (Refer Note below) {8,483 80} 2,411.25 (60.31) - (6,132.86} {4.417 48)
Net Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) - - {3,242.58) - {3,242.58) (3.242.58)
Notes

1. The Company has deferred tax assets rejating lo provision for gaubiful debts and advances. employee benefils and cenain ather temporary differences which 1s
partially offset by difference in the written down vaiue of property, plant and equipment. In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, the likelihood of whelher it 15
more likely than not thal some portion or alt of the deferred tax assets will nol be realized mus! be considered The ultimate realization of deferred 1ax assets is
dependent on the genesation of future axable income during the periods in which temporary difference becomne deductible. As the Company was in the process of
establishing a lrend of taxable profits and considering the absence of cerainly of future taxable profils fill previous year ended March 31, 2020, the Company had not
recognised deferred tax assel of R5.4,417 .47 Lakhs. Duwing the year ended Barch 31, 2021, based on its internat assessment, {he company beliaves 1hat there is a

reasonable cerainly that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. The cempany has accorgingly
recognised defetrad 1ax asset as at March 31, 2021,

2 The Company intends 1o elect lo exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the income Tax Act, 1951 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendmaent)
Qrdinance, 2018 du ng-2020-2021. Accordingly, the Deferred Tax as at March 31, 2020 anc March 31, 2021 has been computed using the rates i
Ordinance 2019, 5, 0144 ™
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Note -32: Commitments and Contingent Liabilities {to the extent not provided for}

{i) Commitments

T in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

{a) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

Property, plant and equipment 1,481.36 380.60
(b Cther commitments:
{i} Vendor purchase commitmenis 18,822.61 1,52,821.43
(i) Export Commitments perfaining to EPCG benefits, considered as Government Grants that are 7.666.35 7.666.35
required {0 be met by 2023 to 2025.
(i) The Company has commitied to provide future post sale services for periods extending from 1 to! 14,294 .51 18.020.71
25 years
{ii} Contingent Liabilities
Refer Note 22 as regards policy on provision and contingent liabilities.
% in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021

Riarch 31, 2020

{a) Claims against the Company not acknowiedged as debis. in the nature of :
(i Income Tax demands, including penatity and interest due up to date of the order.
These daims relate to demands made significantly pertaining fo transfer pricing and olher
adjustments, which are being contested by the Company. These cases are pending at vafious
forums with the respective authorities. Qutflows, if any, arising out of the claims would depend
upon the outcome of the decision of the appellate authority and the Company's right for future
appeals before judiciary. No reimbursements are expected.

(i} Sales tax and VAT demands, including penalty and imerest due up to the dale of the order.
- These claims relate to demands arising fram the instances of noa-fiting of returns by vendors
and Non payments of Kamalaka VAT by the Local vendors to the Govt. Treasury.
- These claims relaies to demands arising from sale of Solar PV Module. Module Structure,
Cable, Baltery. Submersible Pumps, Molor Controller, Hardware elc. as ‘Solar Pumping System’
as an exempt goods. As per Authority in the schedules appended to Rajasthan VAT Act, there is
ne entry for 'Solar Pumping System’ and hence the same is subjected to Hem-wise duly structure.

720.26

3.806.72

729.26

130.27

7.351.69
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Note -33: Disclosures required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
¥in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(iy Principai amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 4676.29 2,298.31
accounting year

{ii} Interest due thereon reraining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 326.29 88.54
accounting year

{ifi) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18 of the Micro, - -
Small and Medium Entemprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2008), along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond appointed day during
each accounting year

{iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 326.29 68.54
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointad day during tha yearn)
but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(v} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 326.29 68.54
accounting year

{vi} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - -
succeeding years, untit such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006

Dues fo Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined {o the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
collected by the management.

Note -34: Capital management

The Company manages it's capital to ensure that it will be able to confinue as a going concern while maximising the return {o stakeholders
through equity and internal accumulations.

The capital structure of the Company consists of working capital debt (borrowings as detailed in notes 18 and 20 offset by cash and bank
balances) and total equily of the Company.

The Company is not subject to any externaily imposed capital requirements.

The Company's management reviews the capital structure of the Company on a need basis when planning any expansions and growth
strategies.
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Note - 35: Earnings/ (Loss) Per Share

Accounting Policy

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number ¢f equily shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also
the weighted average number of equity shares that couid have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive
potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actuaily issued at fair value {i.e.the average market
value of the oulstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converled as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at

a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

in¥

For the year ended

Particulars For the year ended
articuta March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Basic earnings/ {{oss) per share 90.70 53.35
Diluted earnings/ (loss) per share 90.70 53.39
Note - 35.1: Basic Earnings/ (L.oss) Per Share
The earnings/(loss) and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings/ {loss) per share are as follows:
¥ in Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Profit {loss) for the period attributable to Shareholders of the Company (Z in Lakhs)
Earnings/ (loss} used in the calculation of basic earnings per share (¥ in Lakhs)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic eamings/ (loss) per share

20,839.97
20,836.497
2,29,77 567

12,267.65
12,267.65
2,29.77.567

Note - 35.2 Diluted Earnings/ (Loss) Per Share

The earnings/ (toss) and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings/ (foss} per share are as follows:

¥ in Lakhs

Particutars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Profif (Loss) for the period attributable to Shareholders of the Company (¥ in Lakhs)
Earnings/ (L.oss) used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share (¥ in Lakhs)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnings/ (loss) per
share

20,839.97

20,839.97

2,29.77 567

12,267.65

12,267.65

2,2977,567

The Company does not have any oufstanding equity instruments which are dilutive.




i
i

Tata Power Solar Systems Limited

Hotes to 1he Bnancial slatements 17 the year ended #March 31, 2021

CIN: et s0BIH 1RGP £ 330738

Hote - 36: Related Pany Dischosurn

Hote -36.1. Names of Retoted panies snd relationships:

Hoidng Company

Fhas Taia Do Commiparty Lanied

{Whcly Dwied Subwdary

Chraitrasyes Satiys Lrmeitd

Feflow Subwadidiios

Tala Powe Renenabio Enefgy Lindoed
Taty Powed e Distrnign Limded
Tata Power T1aging Cormpany Lmdod
TH Recemabie Maogrd L
Protavad Windtarm Lireiea
2atthon Power Limted

Wahvhan Rosbwadie £ ey candeg
Coaslal Guaial Pova Laded

TR Himal Limded

¥P Kunpk Selar Lisvind

TP Seupu Solar Limaeg

[RRSOEISEE of riody Cisripany

Joint Ventures of Hdting Tompany

Tata Progcls Lanvted

PontEnks TIRAmIsion Laned
ingustiat Encegy Limitad

I'g.mxxcrs holding start 1han 23% wn the Holmng Company

Taiz Sers Provate Limded

Subrganied ef Promeiecs hoklng mede than 2% in 1he Halawng
Company

Tatas Afvarced BEAERIS LI aed

Tasa Continnng Eongmets Landea

Tata Copital Frsacst Senaces Limaad

Tata ConsullEncy SMVITES Lamides

Tista Commumications Limided

THEN UL [iveboment Compaty Longed
1213 iMeenahoad fantad

Taia Communcaions Cofaboiaion Suraces Presate Lacuted
Trta £vs1 Lomded (v o [ 158 Avgunt, 2030}
indent Redsdt Lended

Taia ALG Gerarat insucatcy Companmy Limsed
Tata Tolesorvwes iimded

Joart Veduzes of Promodas hEng mate than 26% in the Holeing
Company

Totn ALK Lile Fsceancs Company Lmvied
Tola Shy Lumded

Ky Risnaqrrrond Pergenar

e Pravect Sohs. Chavman

M Astuth Xnanng. Duectod fw e | 43 05 20200

Ms At Bansad - Owector (upio OB 01 30081

My Matesn O Parange - Cheet Excatiog Offonr (w e | 13 06 2670
B Ansnd Agsesal . Daegior

W Seetrpathy Crances - Dractor (waf 27 03 2050)

N Acrya Dupta - Cheet Prgnoal Citees (w o £ 91 05 2020}

O St (gad - Conpd Frnantiat Olfer (uplo M1 04 2020)

e Jarar T Mahornesh ~ Company Soertinty dw e ! 13 D5 2NN

Kode 362 Transaciians duiing 1he peviod

M Amey 5 Nt - Compaty Seotalary fuple 12 G5 020)

Ein La.lhsﬁ
Subgidiadios & Joint Veniures
Pasliculars Helding Gompany Vihotly Grwned Subsidiary Follow Subsidiaries “"“’:’:":d?; im"'“ m“iﬁ: '::::':_‘“‘ 'E:‘::'x "":::";;“\: T‘:‘:‘;g&"’,‘g’
Company
Forthoyear | fortheyoar | forihe yoat | For ihw pede | Fofthoyear | Forfnoyost | Fortho year | Forthe year | Forthayoar | Forthoyesr | Fottho yasr | Fof tha year
ended March | ended Warch | onded March | endod March | onded Bazch | sndod March | onded March | onded March | onded March | ended Mareh | ondod Macch | ended Blarch
3, 2021 31, 205 33, 2021 31, 2020 3. 2021 31, 2020 31700 31, 2010 3%, e 31, 1920 31, 2021 31,2020
1]5ale of Materials
Tali Prrorer Riguroablo Envrgy Luretod TSI 0T L .
Postavas Wienihsint Linded - . . ST 08 21750 23 - -
Teta Powar Diett Distrition Limdes 588 -
Watwhan Renswstie Easgy Limitea - (BB T 9B - - . .
The T8tz Power Comptny Limitsd B 11655 . R
TP Retewatie Maiognd Lamdsd . 5583 E3 BIZEE - - -
Y Sebepor Sotar Lomded 377445 - B R
TP Kok Leden - - . - F29533 -
TP Kenan Solar Lveited - - A . - - L N
Tata Comutancy Senvites Lavaes - o0 52 4763
Tath Propdy Limaed 276 18 30T .
2 Sorvices Retdered
Tha Tats Povene Coonpany Limesd a2 77 02 - - - -
Cherasthasyes Sautya Limdec . 240 1465 .
Taa Fower Renswatde Ercigy Lemned 24123 Larz 18 - - - .
Potavid Wandtatan Lanaed - ExEord -
Tota Power Tiadng Compary Landad - - 3233 pH L) .
Yata Poser (ot (etfoton Limicd 875 &7 .
Tata Consvilency Setveeg Lirvtag - - 21 REY
TF Reasantie Miczogad Lirttec 02 -
3| Servizes Recoived
Tne Tats Pover Corpacy Lended 3Te o o2 e .
Tata Powet Trpdng Company Lynded . . 48550 49152 . . -
Tata Proects Limied . . G 255 97
Tata Seors Prwvate Linles . 1 iRY a7 505 44 . .
Tata Comutng Eaginvess Limdag - 2T 108 A7
Tata Capdal Finansual Serwtes Limidid . 83067 6561
Tata Communiczlians Limded - a6y aG4)
TATA ALA Lde Inpance Comaany Lamited - - - 2493 45
Tala ARG Generat laswranze Company Lt . - N Bl 5 .
Tats Blos Lomed TB 88
Tota Sammnkstass Colaboric: Semees . 3
trelipils Redand Londed - 151
Tata Talesacuras L omiad e T
a}Dividend Paid
The Taks Powre Comasay Lomied .




Tata Powser Solaf Systorms Limitog
Hotoe 1o the financial stalements dor the year ended Marck 39, 202¢
CiN: ULDI06MH H30PLG A0 36

N 4137 .
sr:nmuie: & Jomt Venlures

_ ) {Associates and Jount Vantaras {Promaters holding more han  {of Promotars nalding more

; Particalars Hotding Campany Wrolly Gwnod v Fullow ol Heldmg Company RU% in ihe Halding Company  |\han 20% in ta Hoiding

1 Company

Foriho yoar | Forihe yoar | #OI W year | Fos thayaar | Fortbp year | Forthoyear | Forthe paar | Foithayear | Forthoyoar | Forthoyedr | Forthoyoms | For the you!
anded March | onded March  onded March | snged March | onded March | ended Haich | eagded March | onded Warch | onded Mareh | otded Match | £0ded March | ended Mareh
o a1, 2028 31,3020 3%, 2028 1, 2020 3t, 26271 31,2010 31,200 53, 2000 31, 2021 33,2070 31, 2021 31, 2829
Slinjorast Paid - . I
Yha Talo Powet Company Limdsd LRIKREY 654

Coastar Gupaal Poant Limted - . . . ¥

W gt an Rerdatic Buigy Linided . - - - 1317 B . . .

§[ntoreat Received e
Charasihaiyes S2uivd Limded . X s rees n

The Taia Pawes Comepny LImEes . 1255 .
Tala Powet Reneedbits Entrgy Lended . . 304 72
T2 frnal Limies . » . 5550

Loaa given dusing tha yoar
Chieasthanyes Sawyd Lrrdes . . B0V ES &3228

~

Tro Tazn Foions Compspny Hameng - W00 o .
g{Loan taken dunng tho year
Tne Tala Pow Caonpany Limded B0 682 00 23,146 02 - . B -

Coastal Gupiat Powss Lrnded . . . . 20.000 B0

Wakatan Raowsxalie [ gy Lended . . - &.768 35

#[Loan Repaid by the compony
The Tata Power Comparny Limnad 15 646 60 FARELEe]
st 2l izt o 1Landes . - . . - 20 003 B}

Wakehan Recoveatie Enmgy {imaes . . . . - 17 769 40

191Loan Repaid to the company
The Tata Povee Company Limded . 10000 €5 . . . . . . .

Chutissihaxgen Saurya Limsea - - 28,507 85 507 28 - .
Fale o Qonds and seryics 10 101a1e0 patiay W M3de 3] IhG COMERIYS Loual Hil praset Fufchahes winl mae 374 Seivcns wore Fotinard 31 i kel phid

A5 URY




Tata Power Sotar Systems Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN: U40106MH1989PLC330738

Mote - 36.3: Compensation of key management personnel

Note:

The Direclors were paigd only director's sitting fees during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. The remuneralion payable 10 key management personnel is determinad
by the nomination and remuneration commiltee having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. For amounts incurred by the Company for the provision of key
management gersonnel sérvices that are provided by the Parent Company is disclosed in Note 36.2

¢ in Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Shost-term benefits
{Refer Note below)

2.00

T in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance Quistanding 1.00
Note -36.4: Balances outstanding as at year end
% in Lakhs
1|Balance Receivablel{Payable) {net} As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
The Tata Power Company Limied 5,306.83 25.04
Tala Power Renewabie Energy Limited $,07,854.29 19,878.31
Poolavadi Windfarm Ltd 594183 7.078.47
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Limifed 24.75 26 62
Tata Powar Trading Company Limited (7.88) 28.67
TP Renewable Micregrid Limited 24260 722.85
Chiraslhaayee Saurya Limited 26.64 25,97
Coastal Gujarat Power Limited @.01)
Maithon Powet Limited 733 N
Wahwvhan Renewables Energy Limited
(ndustizal Energy Limited 1.446.42 o
T Solapur Solar Limited 3.70 58
TP Kirnal Lirsted B07.11 :
TP Kirnali Solar Limited 10.266.85 )
Taia Proiects Limited 74142 -
Tata Sons Privale Limiled 28918 341.37
Tata AlA Lile insurance Company Lirmted 1.182.94 534.73
Tata AiG General Insurance Company Limited .
Tata Capilal Financiai Services Limited ;':g 82
Tata Communications Limited (0241) (8:49)
Tala Consulting Engineers Lamied (33.70) {33.37)
Tala International Limited 215 2.15
Tala Consultancy Services Limited 452.79 617.19
Tata Advanced Matenals Limited 3.48 3.48
Tata Teleservices Limited - {0.28}
Tata Sky Limited 011 LA
2]Advances Received/{Paid}
Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited 4.83 9,536.55
Tala International Limiled 4.11 4.11
Tala Consuttancy Services Limited 7.24 23.46
Tala Housing Development Compeny Limited 2.60 280
TATA AlA Life Insurance Company Limited 0.77 0.77
Tala Projects Limiled 6.93 6.93
3|Loan Balance outstanding {payable}
receivable
The Tata Power Company Limited (50.983.20) -
4ilnterest accrued outstanding {payable)/
raceivable
The Tala Power Company Limnited {143.27) .

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and wil be setled in cash. No guaraniees have been given or received. There have been no instances of amounts due 10 or due from related
parties that have been written dack or wrilten off or otherwise provided for during the year.

Note - 36.5! Other transactions and balance outstanding

The Company had received an cpen Corporate Guarantee from The Tata Power Company Limited, the Parent Company, for a maximum borrowing of Rs. 80,000 Lakhs {as at March
31, 2020- Rs 60,000 Lakhs} al any point in time. The Company has utlised the Corporate Guarantee given against various borrowings during the year with a maximum outstanding

amounting to Rs. Nil (as at March 31, 2020- Rs. 35,000 takhs) al any point in time. The Corporate Guarantee ulilized and outstanding as al March 31, 2021 is Rs. Nit (as at March 31,
2020- Rs.Nil).




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
Notes to the financial statements for ihe year ended March 31, 2021
CIN: U40106MHT989PLCI30738

Note -37: Financial Instruments

(1) Categories of financial instrumeats

The carrying value of hnancal instruments by categodies as al March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are as lollows

¥ in Lakhs
Pasticulars Carrylng Value Fair Vatue
As at As at As at As a1
larch 31, 2021 .. March 31, 2020 Sarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Financini Assols
Measyured al amortised ¢ost
Trade recewables 3,55.508.48 88.974.85 3.55.600.48 98,974 9
Cash and cash equivalents 13.997 52 4.18065 13,997 .52 4,160 65
Onher bank balances . 4,000 00 - 4,000 00
Unbyded reverue 415897 142326 418097 +.423.26
Loans B13.43 0173 813 41 TO1 73
Other financial assels 28377 3058 283 77 3ge
iMuasured at falr value through other comprenensive income [FVTOCH)
Darivative assals in hedging retationship - 1288372 - 12.883.72
fAeasured at fair value through profit or loss (FUTPL)
invesiments m muuat funds - 382128 - 362138
Denvative assels not in hetging relaonship . 3.15028 . 315028
Total assels 3,74.754.15 1,28,946.86 3,74,784.15 1,28,946.86
Fimancial Uabiilies
M ed at amortlsed cost
Bonowings 97.382.82 4.01 97.362 82 4.01
Trade payables 212839328 6405208 2.12.839.28 64,052 08
Olher financial kabities 9.414.76 1.016 34 941476 101834
Heasured at fair value through other comprehensive Income {(FYTOG!)
envaiive iabiktias 1 hedging refationship 14,6936 - 14,693.18 .
Measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss {FYTPL)
Dervalive tabehies not in hedging relationship 16.56 - 16.58
Total Habilities 3,34,346.50 6507243 3,34,346.60 5507243

The Managemednt assessad thal the tair value of cash and cash equivaients. Irade recevaties. 10ans. borrowngs. rade payables and atfver fimancial assets and fabildios approxmale ew CanyHg BMounts
argety due {0 the shor lerm malurdies of hese mstuments

Thwe fair value af the Tinancial assets and &atiities s inchided at Ine amount &t wivich the instrumenl could be exchanged in a currend iransaclion belween witing pariies, other than in a forced or kguidaton sake

The following metheds and assumplions were used o sstimale the fair vaiue/ a3monisad cost:

3) Long-term Sxed-rale recelvablesMormrowngs are evaluated by the Company based on paramelers such as inerest rales, individual ediwernhmess of the cuslomer and the fisk tharactenstics of the linanced
project. Based on this evaluaton, aflowances are 1aken inlo account for the expected credit losses of Ihese receivables

bj Fai vafues of the Company's wilerest-beanng borrowngs and loans are deterrmned by using discounted cash fiow (DCF) mefhod using discount rafe that reflects the issuer's borowing rate as af the end of the
repofiing pencd. The oam aon- perforrnance nsk as at March 31, 2021 was assessac 10 be insignificant,

<) The Cormpany erters o dedivauve financial insingments with various counterpanies, prnc:paily inancial instingions with sovesiment grada credil ralings Forexgn exchange fovward contracts and oplions are
valuad using valuation fechniques, which employs the use of matket cbservable inguls. The most frequanty apphied valuation lechrques include forward pricng modal, using present vaiie calouiations The
models incorporate vanous infrls induding Lhe credd quakty of counterpantios. foreign exchange spet and forward rites, vield curves of (he respective currencies, sumency basis spreads between Lhe respective
curencies, interest rate curves ele. As al March 31, 2021, the marked-to-markel vaiue of denivalive assel positions 1s net of a credit valuation adusiment attridatie to derivative Counterparty defaull risk. The
changes in courterparty credit fisk had no matenial effect on the hedge effectiveness assessment for denvalives di led in hedge relat p and other financials instrumenis recogrused at fair value.

(#) Eair value hlerarchy

Some of the Company's financial assels and financial fisbifties are measured at fair value at the end of the repording penod

The fair value hierarchy is based on inpuls 1o valuation 1echiugues (hat are used 10 measure fai value thal are either chservable of unobsesvable and consists of e loliowing three leveds

Quoted prices in active market (Leved 1): Inpuls are quoled prices (unadjusied) ut active markels for identicat as5els or labdties. T includes quoted aquity Mstruments, government securities and quoted
borrowings {fixed rate) thal have quoted piice.

Valuation techniques with observable Inputs (Level 2): Inpuls are other than quoled prices incluted within Leve! 1 that are observable Tor the assel or kabiily, silher drecty (ie., as pres) o indirectly (e |
devivad from prices) This inciudes derivative fmancial instruments and unguoted lioating and fixed rate HOrFOVANGS

Valuation techniques with significant unobservabie inputs (Level 31 inguls are not based on observable markel data {unobservable inputs) Fadr values are determined < whole of i pan using a valuakon

model based on assumptions thal are neither supported by prices from observable current market rensachons in the same insirument nor are they pased on avasable market date. This includes unquoted equety
shares and fedeemabla non-cumulative prelerence shargs.

Tre tollowstg tabie gives information: about how the fair vafues of these financial assets and financial abiities are determned {in pasticwar, e vaisation technque (s) and wputs used)

Financial assets/{financiat 1labiities} Falr Value as at (T in Lakchs) Falr Value Hlerarchy Vaiuation Technlque(s) and key Inputs used

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Invasiments in Multal funds - 362128 flevel 2 Valved based on matket vatue of e fund after deducting its lisbities. The
value of all uails of a matual fund porloho are calculated on a daily bass,
from ths all expenses are then sutiracted. The result i \hen divided by the
lotal number of unils the reswtant value s the NAV

Dernivative tinancial insluments {Fore:Qn currency (14,705 74) 16,034 00 [Level 2 Ciscountes ¢ash flow. Future cash flows are astirated based on fonward
forward contracts ard Options) exchangs rales (from observable forvard exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period) and comtract forward rates. discounted al a rate tha
reflects the credit risk of varous caunterpans

{if) Fair valup of financlal assets and financial liabliitios that are not measured at fair value (but fair vilue disciasures are required)
The Management consider Hial, Ihe- {ykng amounts of financiat assels and fnancial ablikes rezogrised in the fnancal slalemants approximale thelr fair values, Demidmmptier disclosure have been made
. i .




Yata Power Sofar Systems Limited

Notes to the Hinancial statements far the year ended March 3%, 2021
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(3H) Capital Managemenl and Gearing Ratio

For the purposs of the Company's capstal managemen!, caprat nciudes 1ssusd equily canitai and ail olher squily reserves attnbulable 1o the equity holders of the Compary. The Drmary objeclive of Ihe
Company's capital management is 1o maximze the shareholder value

The Company manages ils capital structire and makes adusiments in ight of changes in £5oROMIC CONGIEONS 2nd the reguirernents of the Snancial covanants. From lime (o time, the Company reviews 15 poboy
related 1o dividend payment 1o sharshaigers. return capsal to shareholders or fresh issue of shares. The Company monilors capital using gearng rakoa, which 15 ne! debt divides by total BRG] plus net debt The
Company inchude s withirs net debt, inteest bearing 1oans and borrowings. less cash and cash equivalents. exciuding disconlinued operations as delailed in the notes below.

The Company's capual management is intended (o creale va:ue for shareholtlers by facritating the meeling of its tong-teen and short-lerm goals Hs Caprtat structure conists of net debl {borrowings as detaded in
noles below) and lotal equity.

Gearing ratio

The gearing rate atthe end of Ine fepaning penod was as folicws

Particulars As al As at
Warch 31, 2024 tarch 34, 2020
Debt (5) 97.382 82 4.01
Less. Cash and Bank batances (inchudng cash any bank talances in a disposal Company heid lor sale) 13,997 52 816065
Net debt 83,385.30 -B,158.84
Tolal Capral (a} £2.34228 8917924
Capital and net debt 1,45,127.58; 61,0210
Mel debl to Total Capilal plus net debt rabo (%) S57% ~13%:

(7} Debt is defined as long-term borrowings dincluding current maturies) and shorl-temm bomowings (exciudig denvalive, fitancist guaranlee conliacts and cortingent congiderations)
(i} Equily is defined as Equily share capital, Unsecured peretual secixities and other equity incliding reserves ang sumplus
o charges were made i ihe objectives, policies of processes for managing capilal dunng the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

{iv} Financial isk management objectives and policies
The Company's reasury funclion provides sensices lo ihe business, mondors and manages the financial nisks relsting Lo the cperations of the Company through intemal meetings with Me key stakefolgers 1o
analyse exposures by degree of magnitude of nsks These nsks include market nsk (ciuging currency sisk), (el risk and quidiy fisk.

Tha primary markel risk o the Company is foreign exchange nsk. The Company uses derivative financal instiuments 16 mviigate foregn exchange relaled fisk exposures. Al denvatve activities for risk
management purposes ane Sarmed oul Dy a leam at has he appropriale skils, experience and supervisson 1l is the Company's policy hal no lrateng i detivative for speculative pUPOBRS mayhe Lngernaken
The Management reviews and agrees palicies for managing each of these risks

{v} Karket Risk

The Company's activiies expose it primarty to (ne financiat isks of changes in lorergn currency exchange rates (see note (vi) below). The company enters infd a denvatve fnancial nstruments fo manage ts
exposara (o foreign currency risk, including:

= Fomward forexin exchange conlracts to hedge Ina axchangs rale rsk arisng on the export of modules and mpod of cetisfmoduses and capital goods

Markel nisk exposuros are measured using sensitivily analysis

Tnera has dbeen no changs 10 the Company's exposure W market risks of the manner in which 1hese risks are being managed and measured

{vi) Foreign Currency risk management
The Company undertakes iransactions denominated in foregn curtencies. consequently, 8xposures 16 exchange rate fuctuatons anse. Exchange rate axposwres are managed wiba spproved policy parameters
ulising forward foreign exchange contracts

The carryng ameunts of the company's foreign currency denominated monetary assels and monetary kisbiiites at the end of the raporiing periog.

Cumency Liabilitles at Asscts ap at
March 31, 2021 Warch 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Py 141 149 . k
use 72,055 50 7.819.82 106.85 108 85
EURO 4,359 49 221.68] E R
GBP - § 321

Note: Assets includes rade receivables and Liabilities inciude trade payable and Creditors for capilal suppliasiservices

{vi{a) Foreign Cumency sensitivity analysls

The Company & mamly exposed Lo Ihe USD, Euro, GBP and JPY currencias.

Sensitivity analysis 15 computed based on tha changes in income and expendiurs in foreign currency upon conversion in the functional cutrency, due to exchange rate fuciuation between previous feportng
period and the cument repoting pariod

‘the following lable cetails (e Company's sensitivity to a Re. 1 increase and decrease against the refevant foreign currenties. A positve number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where the Re
strangiivens against the refevant currency and vice versa

Particulars Currency JPY Impact {Rs, in Lakhs)
For the year entded For the year ended
March 31, 2621 March 31, 2020
tmpact on profit o 1oss for the year {3.24y {3.73)
fmpact on lolal equity as at the end of the 1eporting penod {3.24) (373
Patticulars Currency USD lmpact {Rs. inn Lakhs)
For the year ended Forihe year ended
March 31, 2021 tharch 34, 2020
Impact on profit of 1655 for the year 989.15 102.10
Impact on total equity #s at the end of he reporling period 459,15 10210
Padlcutars Currency Euro impact {Rs. [t Lakhs
Far the year ended For the yeas ended
March 31, 2021 March 3%, 2020
Inpact on profit of 103s for the year 50.62 267
Impact on (otal equily as at ihe end of the reponing peried 50.82 2.67
Particulars Currency GBP Impact {Rs, in Lakhs)
For the year ended Forthe year ended
March 3%, 2021 March 31, 2020
Impacl on profd or loss for the year - oo

{impact on tolal equity as at the end gf the reparting pened - 0.07
[V
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(vi)(b} Derivative linancial instruments

15 the poiicy of the Company fo enter into fonwvard forsign exchang® CONracts to cover SpomAc foreign currency payments within 304 to 100% of the exposure gereraled  The Company aiso enlers o fonwarg
foreign exchange contracts to manage the fisk assowated with amicipaled purchase lransactions. Adjustmients are mads to Ihe inlial carrymg amounls of non-financial hedged items when anbospated sale or

purchase transaction takes place

Tie foliowing lable givas delails w resped of ulstanding {oreign exchange torward and option cortracls

31st March, 202%

Category Currency Buy! Sell Fareign Currency Nominal Value Fair Value assets
{liabilities)
{Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs} {Rs. in Lakhs}
Fonwvatd contiacls usp Buy 8,939 .50 20800002 {14.709 74}
314st March, 2020
Category Curency Buy/ Sell Foreign Cumrency Hominat Value Fair Value assets
(sabifities)
(Rs. In Lakhs) {Rs. in Lakhs) {Rs, In Laxhs)
Fonward contracts uso Buy 3.824.77 2.68.932 51 1050366
Qplion contracts uss Buy 2297 %0 1,73.588 84 5530 34

{wtiy Int 1 rate risk manag t

Interest rate risk s the ngk that the futuie casn finws of warranty provisions vall Tucluate because of changes in markel nterest ralgs

The Company’s borrowings are primanly shor-emm, wheh do not expose i to sigrficant inlerest rala risk

{vil)) Credi risk managemeant

Credil risk 13 the risk thal counterparty wilt not Inest s obIGANONS under a financat inslrument of customer contract, leading ta financral loss. Credil risk arises from cash held with banks and financiat instittions,
a5 wol 45 CIEtt expossre 10 Cients, intluding oulstanding accounts receivable The maxmum oxposure 10 tredi fsk is equal 1o fe camyng value of the fnancial assets. The objedlive of managing counlerparty
credit fisk 15 1o prevenl fosses in fnancial assets. The Company assssses the oredit quaity of the countarpartes, taiung mlo actour Iney Snancial posien, pash experienca and olfer facios. The company is
exposad 10 credil risk from ils operating sctivities (primaily irade receivables) and from is financing achvities inciuding loans and other finandial instruments

Particulars 31st tarch, 2021 Jist March, 2020
Trace Recevables 3.55.508 .48 68,974 96
Leans B34 70173
Ofher Financai assets 283.77 30398
Unbsdled Revenue 4,380.57 T.423.28
Total 3,60,756 .63 1,61,130.93

‘Trade and other receivables

The Company's exposure 1o credit risk is influenced mainly by the indwiduat characleristics of eacn customer. The demographics of the cusiomer. ncluaing the defaut risk of the industry andg conty i which the
cuslorner operates, also has an influence on credil sk assessment

The following tabie gives detads N resped of revenues generaled from op customer and lop § customers

Rs. in Lakhs

Patticutars For the year ended #arch 31, 2021 For the year anded March 31, 2020
Revenie from fop customear 1.53,368 80 75,85105
Revenue from second top cusiomer 1,48.649 59 23,808 72
Revenue from fop S customers 3,78022.33 1.44.185 08
Two customers accounted for 63% of 1he revenue for the year endad March 31, 2021 and wo customer accounted for more than 47% of 1he fevenue Jor the year ended Karch 31, 2020
The following l3ble gives delads in respact of seceivables due from top customer and top 5 customers

Rs. In Lakhs
{Rarticulars Forthe year ended March 31, 2021 For lhe year ended March 31, 2020
Receivabie from top cusiomer 1,15398 55 18,576 31
Recewabie from secend top customer 8737130 14,481.62
Recewvaple from top 5 customers 2,70372 51 62.127.65

Twe customers accounted for 55% of the recevables as al March 31, 2021 and two cuslomsr accounted lor mose than 30% of the recevaties as &t March 21, 2020

{ix} Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk s the risk that the Company wifl not be able to meet s financial oblgations as they become due The Company's principal sowrces of tiquidity are cash: and cash equivaients. working capital

borrowings, the cash fiow that is generated from operations and proceeds of maturing financiat assels. The Company believes that (he werking capita), including the avaiatia unulitsed borrowmng mas is sufficient
{0 meel ds curent requireinants. Accoidingty, no figuidily risk is percewed

The foliowing 1able detaits the Compaiy's expecied maiurly for its nor-denvative financial 3sseis

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March ¥, 2020

Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than & years Less than 1 year 1-5 years Hore than 5 years
Cash and cash equivalents 13.597.52 - 4,1603.65 -
Other bark baances . 400000
Trade receivables 34157565 22168577 95947 32 302764 -
Unbitied revenye 4,150 97 142326
Investments - - 10000 362128 - 10000
Loans 336 69 476 42 32434 W78
Olher linancial assels 1672 2Br0s 30.98 - -
Derivative assets - - - 16.034.00 - -
Tolal 3,60,077.85 22.939.24 100.0¢ 1,25,541.83 3,405,010 100.00
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Thea table below provides details reganding the contractual maturities of financial kabifitios as al March 31, 2021

Derivalive babiities

101633

1.016 33

fom—reen Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Uptc 1 year 1to5 5+ Total Carrying Amount
- years years
Einancial Liabiitics
Accounis payable and acceptances [ron-inferest 2.92.839 28 2.12.83% 28 2128328
bearing)
:Borrowings and nlerest ihereon 7 651.00 . 97,665 00 97.661 400
Future Interesl G985 47 782 1 1.747 &7 555,47
Olher financial liabiies 813653 E 9,136 58 8,136 58
Derivaiive habiities 14,708 74 - 1470974 1470974
The tabie below provides details regardng the contracual maluiies of financal liabities as al March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lakhs

Particutars Upto t year 1to 5 5+ Total Carrylng Amount

years years
Finangial Liabilitles
Accounis payable and accepiances (non-interest B£.052.08 - B4 052 08 64,052.08
bearing}
Borroaings and interest thereon 4.02 - 402 402
Other finane:al habivies 1g16 31
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Note -38: Segment Information

The Company is a manufacturer of solar phote-voltaic ¢cells and modules as weli as in the Engineering, Procurement
and Censtruction (EPC) in the solar energy market, wherein the manufactured ceils/modules are utilised. The
Company is currently predominantly operating in a single geography i.e. india, with the total of exports being less
than 10% of tofal revenues.

Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind-AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating
Decision Marker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of
various performance indicators by the overall business segment, i.e. the performance of the EPC projects.

As the allocation of resources and profitability of the business is evaluated by the CODM on an overall basis, with
evaluation into individual categories to understand the reasons for variations, no separate segments have been

identified. Accordingly no additional disclosure has been made for the segmental revenue, segmental results and the
segmental assets and liabilities.

Note -39: Impact of Covid-19

The Company has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these financial
statements, including but not fimited to its assessment of, fiquidity and going concern assumption, recoverable
values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenue recognition owing to changes in cost budgets of
revenue contracts and impact on effectiveness of its hedges. The Company has carried ouf this assessment based
on avaitable internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of standalone financial statements
and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these financial statements and expects o recover the
carrying amount of ils assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements may differ from that estimated as
at the date of approval of these financial statements owing fo the nature and duration of COVID-18.

Note -40: The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 12th August, 2020 has approved the
Composite Scheme of Arrangement for the merger of the Company with The Tata Power Company Limited (Holding

Company). The scheme is subject to requisite statutory/regulatory approvals including approval of the jurisdictional
National Company Law Tribunal.

Note -41: Recent pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule Ill of the
Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division 1, Il and l{l of Schedule |1l and are applicable from April 1,
2021. Key amendments relating to Division [l which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to
comply with Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

* Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished as current or
non-current,

+ Certain additional disciosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to
prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

+ Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

« Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible
asset under development.

+ If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial
institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

* Specific disclosure under 'additional regulatory requirement’ such as corpliance with approved schemes of
arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name
of company, loans and

advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property
held ete.

Statement of profit and loss:

* Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisciosed income and cryp!
currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the standalone fi
statements. Vo

AL A e
The amendménts "‘exténs{we and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as reg
RS A




Tata Power Solar Systems Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
CIN: U40106MH1589PLLI30738

Note -42: As at March 31, 2021, the Company has Good and Service tax recoverable recorded under balances with government authorities
(Note 15) amounting to Rs. 11,387.52 Lakhs { As at March 31, 2020 - Rs. 13,638.99 takhs). The Company based on iis assessment
believes that the afaresaid is fully recoverable and accordingly no provision is required.

Note -43: Significant Events after the Reporting Period

There were no significant adjusting events that ocourred subsequent to the reporting period other than the events disciosed in the relevant
notes.

Note -44:

The Code on Sociat Security 2020 has been notified in the Official Gazette on September 29, 2020. The effective date from which the
changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules are yet to be framed. Impact if any of the change will be assessed and accounted in
the period in which said Code becomes effective and the rules framed thereunder are notified.

Note -45: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on April 20, 2021,

Note 48: The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Power Company Limited and accordingly is exempted from the preparation of
consolidated financial statements in term of Ministry of Corporate Affair Notification dated October 14, 2014.

Note -47: The previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to current year's classification.
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